
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

YECA GOVERNING BOARD 
Wednesday, April 5, 2023 
2:00 P.M. Public Session 

        Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood St, Woodland, CA 95695 

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*) 

1. Call to Order (2:00 PM)

2. Approval of the Agenda

3. Announcements

a. Proclamation “National Public Safety Telecommunications Week April 9th - 15th

b. YECA’s Dispatcher of the Year “Bethany Eakin”

4. Public Comment
Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks to 
three minutes.  Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on any item 
not on today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, however, the 
Governing Board may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting. 

5. Consent Agenda
Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Governing 
Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board remove an item. If an 
item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the Agenda. 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the November 2, 2022, Regular Meeting, December 14,
2022 & January 25,2023 Special Session Meetings

b. Operations Division Report
c. Current Year Budget Status Update
d. 2022 4th Quarterly Law & Fire Dispatch to Que Call Stats
e. 2022 Annual Calls for Service Report

6. FY21/22 External Audit Presentation by Richardson & Company, CPA’s – *Info Only
a. FY21/22 Fiscal Audit Summary
b. FY21/22 Audit Letters
c. FY21/22 Fiscal Audit Financials - Click Here to Open Attachment

1



7. YECA Member Cost Formula Review Discussion – *Info Only
a. Follow-up discussion from Board Member McKinney requests for the YECA members to 

consider a review of the current member cost formula for the annual budget allocations 
and to provide member agency review committees conclusions

8. FY23/24 Proposed Draft Budget & Presentation – *Info Only
a. FY23/24 Proposed Budget
b. FY23/24 Proposed CIP Summary
c. FY23/24 Proposed CIP 4-Year Forecast
d. FY23/24 Proposed Position Table
e. IT Staffing Summary
f. IT Helpdesk Technician (Extra-help) Job Description

9. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting Date May 3, 2023

10. Items for Future Meeting Agenda
a. UCD Fire Discussion on potential prospects of joining YECA membership
b. FY23/24 Budget

11. Adjournment
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review and 
posted on/or before March 31, 2023 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County, Erwin Meier 
Adminis-tration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, California and on the agency website:

If you are a person with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the 
meeting, please contact Tianna Dumas at (530) 666-8900 or (530) 666-8909 (fax).  Requests for 
accommodations must be made at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

2



YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
GOVERNING BOARD 

November 2, 2022 
2:00 P.M. Special Session 

Minutes 
 

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday November 2nd, 2022 at Yolo Emergency 
Communications Agency 35 N Cottonwood – Conference Room, Woodland. Board Member Binns 
called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m.  

This meeting was formatted to allow Board Members, staff, and the public to participate in the meeting via 
teleconference, pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 (March 17, 2020), was available at the 
following link: 

Teleconference Options to join Zoom meeting:  
By PC: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84256097223 

Meeting ID: 842 5609 7223 
Or 

By Phone: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 842 5609 7223 

 
PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Dena Humphrey, YECA Executive Director, Steve Binns, 
City of West Sacramento, Kim McKinney, City of Woodland 
Joined via ZOOM: Rebecca Ramirez, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation  
Absent: Tom Lopez, Yolo County, John Miller, City of Winters  

   
Minute Order No. 2022-14 
Approval of the Agenda - Approved  

 

MOTION: Ramirez SECOND: McKinney AYES: Binns, McKinney, Ramirez ABSENT: 
Lopez, Miller 
 
Entry No. 4 
Announcements- None 
 
 

Entry No. 5 
Public Comment – None  
 
Entry No. 6 
Minute Order No. 2022-15 
Approval of Consent Agenda - Approved 
MOTION: McKinney SECOND: Ramirez AYES: Binns, McKinney, Ramirez ABSENT: Lopez, 
Miller 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the June 1, 2022, Regular Meeting & July 1, 2022, Special 
Session Meeting 

b. Operations Division Report 
c. Current Year Budget Status Update 
d. 2022 Quarterly Law & Fire Dispatch to Que Call Stats  
e. Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings pursuant to 

Assembly Bill 361 on the basis that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is 
ongoing, and (b) meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees.  

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84256097223


Entry No. 7 
Minute Order No. 2022-16 
YECA Member Cost Formula Review Discussion- *Voted Item – Approved 
MOTION: McKinney SECOND: Ramirez AYES: Binns, McKinney, Ramirez ABSENT: Lopez, 
Miller 

a. McKinney advised that Woodland is incurring additional costs since taking over processing 
records. With the new board members might be worth looking into the formula for how costs 
are allocated and determine if adjustments are necessary. Board Member Ramirez questioned 
what the current formula is and how figures were determined. ED Humphrey informed that 
costs are determined by a two way split.
1) 15% Allocation- Split 3 ways 
2) 85% Rolling call average over 3 years

ED Humphrey also advised that the budget is set in March, therefore best method moving 
forward would be to look at over the next 2 months. Board Member McKinney suggested 
starting by December and in the next 2-3 weeks identifying a participant from each agency 
to be part of a work group.  

Entry No. 8 
Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting Date: Tentatively December 7th 

Entry No. 9 
Items for Future Meeting Agenda: None 

Entry No. 10    Meeting Adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 Minutes submitted by Tianna Dumas 

4



YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
GOVERNING BOARD 

December 14, 2022 
1:00 P.M. Special Session 

Minutes 

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday December 14th, 2022 at Yolo Emergency 
Communications Agency 35 N Cottonwood – Conference Room, Woodland. Board Member Binns 
called the meeting to order at 12:59 p.m. 

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Dena Humphrey, YECA Executive Director, Steve Binns, 
City of West Sacramento, Kim McKinney, City of Woodland, Shawn Kinney, YochaDehe, John 
Miller, City of Winters  
Absent: Tom Lopez, Yolo County 

Minute Order No. 2022-17 
Approval of the Agenda - Approved 

MOTION: Miller SECOND: McKinney AYES: Binns, McKinney, Kinney, Miller 
ABSENT: Lopez 
Entry No. 3 
Public Comment – None  

Entry No. 4 
Minute Order No. 2022-18 
Special Session 

a. YECA Member Cost Formula Review Discussion – Dena Humphrey, Executive Director
explained the allocation of the member shares as a 3-year rolling average with a 15% fixed
administrative fee and an 85% variable fee that is based on calls for service per agency. In
addition, ED Humphrey explained the CIP formula which also consists of a 15% fixed ratio
and an 85% variable using the debt ratio from original allocations of the long term debt.
The ratios of the long term debt were originally assessed by the financial firm Government
Financial Strategies. Board Member Miller suggested in the future using population size as
the metric for the fixed ratio to determine allocations of member shares. Board Members
requested a detailed breakdown of line items in the budget.

Entry No. 5 
Next Scheduled Special Session Meeting Date: January 25th, 2:00pm 

Entry No. 6 
Items for Future Meeting Agenda: YECA member cost formula review discussion, detailed breakdown 
of the YECA budget. 

Entry No. 7    Meeting Adjourned at 2:01 p.m. 
           Minutes submitted by Tianna Dumas 

5



YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 
GOVERNING BOARD 

January 25, 2023 
1:30 P.M. Special Session 

Minutes 
 

The YECA Governing Board met on Wednesday January 25th, 2023 at Woodland City Hall, 300 
First Street, Woodland. Board Member Binns called the meeting to order at 1:34 p.m.  

This meeting was formatted to allow Board Members, staff, and the public to participate in the meeting via 
teleconference, pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 (March 17, 2020), was available at the 
following link: 

Teleconference Options to join Zoom meeting:  
By PC: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84256097223 

Meeting ID: 842 5609 7223 
Or 

By Phone: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID: 842 5609 7223 

 
PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Dena Humphrey, YECA Executive Director, Steve Binns, 
City of West Sacramento, Kim McKinney, City of Woodland, Shawn Kinney, YochaDehe, John 
Miller, City of Winters  
Absent: Tom Lopez, Yolo County 

   
Minute Order No. 2022-19 
Approval of the Agenda - Approved  

 

MOTION: Kinney SECOND: McKinney AYES: Binns, McKinney, Kinney, Miller ABSENT: 
Lopez 
 

Entry No. 3 
Public Comment – None  
 
Entry No. 4 
Minute Order No. 2022-20 
Special Session 

a. YECA Member Cost Formula Review Discussion – Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 
explained the allocation of the member shares as a 3-year rolling average with a 15% fixed 
administrative fee and an 85% variable fee that is based on calls for service per agency. 
Board Members requested a detailed look at the length of time for calls for service per 
agency, including a weighted calls for service report to provide to their finance staff members 
to analyze further.   

Entry No. 5 
Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting: March 1st, 2:00pm  
 
Entry No. 6 
Items for Future Meeting Agenda: YECA Budget Proposal  
 
Entry No. 7    Meeting Adjourned at 2:32 p.m.  
            Minutes submitted by Tianna Dumas 

6

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84256097223


13%

11%

76%

APRIL 2023
Vacancies In-Training Trained

STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item: 

Date:  April 5, 2023  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 

From:  Vanesa Hoyt, Operations Supervisor 

Subject: January- February 2023 Combined Operations Division Report 

Recommendation: No action required; information only. 

Summary:  Operations staff is currently engaged in the following: 

Staffing:  

1. Out of 39 funded operations positions:

a. Jodean Hernandez has completed training on the WPD radio (2nd console) and will
begin training on the WSP radio (3rd console).

b. New dispatchers: Charrise Torres, Adilene Plancarte, and Lauren Boggs have
completed the in-house academy and have begun the call taking phase of their
training.

2. Connie Kenton, Dispatcher III, has voluntarily stepped down to Dispatcher II.

3. The most recent recruitment closed in February, resulting in 4 applicants going through
backgrounds.  The next academy is scheduled for April 2023.

Classification Filled Funded Vacant 
Supervisor 4 4 0 
Operations 
Supervisor 1 1 0 
Dispatcher III 2 4 2 
Dispatcher I/II 23 26 3 
Dispatch 
Assistant 4 4 0 
TOTAL 34 39 5 

5.b

7



2023 YTD
Incoming Non-Emergency 

Lines

West Sacramento

Winters

Woodland

Yolo

Statistical Information: 

Monthly Phones Statistics:  

JAN FEB 
9-1-1 5,153 4,361 
7-Digit
Emergency 1,026 873 
AMR 120 130 
West 
Sacramento 3,817 3,038 
Winters 327 263 
Woodland 4,130 3,549 
Yolo 4,998 4,260 
Outgoing 6,598 4,886 

TOTAL 26,169 21,360 

Monthly CAD Events: 

JAN FEB YTD 
West Sacramento 
Law 5,147 4,156 9,303 
Fire 542 348 890 
Medical 675 568 1,243 
Animal Control 191 167 358 
Public Works/Support 292 30 322 

TOTAL 6,847 5,269 12,116 
Winters 
Law 632 528 1,160 
Fire 51 68 119 
Medical 51 37 88 
Animal Control 14 23 37 
Public Works/Support 15 6 21 

TOTAL 763 662 1,425 
Woodland 
Law 4,958 4,093 9,051 
Fire 399 327 726 
Medical 462 437 899 
Animal Control 202 163 365 
Public Works/Support 190 61 251 

TOTAL 6,211 5,081 11,292 

8



JAN FEB YTD 
YSO 
Law 2,816 2,670 5,486 
Fire 423 481 904 
Medical 119 94 213 
Animal Control 223 206 429 
Public Works/Support 627 541 1,168 

TOTAL 4,208 3,992 8,200 
Yocha Dehe 
Fire 18 9 27 
Medical 26 20 46 

TOTAL 44 29 73 
Arbuckle 
Fire 13 16 29 
Medical 13 18 31 

TOTAL 26 34 60 
UCD/DFD 
Fire 103 77 180 
Medical 64 56 120 

TOTAL 167 133 300 
GRAND TOTAL 18,266 15,200 33,466 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2023 CAD Events 

Yocha Dehe Arbuckle UCD Winters Yolo West Sacramento Woodland

9



CLETS Inquiries/Returns: 

JAN FEB YTD 
Inquiries 28,492 24,863 53,355 
Returns 46,047 40,182 86,229 

Confidential Records Requests (Audio & CAD Print out): 

JAN FEB YTD 
23 15 38 

After-Hours Records Entries:  

JAN FEB YTD 
West 

Sacramento 277 249 526 
Winters 0 1 1 

Woodland 0 8 8 
TOTAL 277 258 535 

Text to 9-1-1: 

JAN FEB 
Total 
YTD 

TOTAL 17 17 34 

IROC (Fire Resource Ordering Entries): 

JAN FEB YTD 
IROC 1 1 2 

9-1-1 Answering Times:

In busiest hour; 90% off all 9-1-1 calls shall be answered within 15 seconds, 95% of all 9-1-1 
calls should be answered within 20 seconds 

Month & (Busiest 
Hour) 

JAN 
(1700)

FEB 
(1600)

YTD 
AVERAGE 

0-10 seconds 95.05% 96.39% 95.72% 
0-15 seconds 98.76% 99.64% 99.20% 
0-20 seconds 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

10



Projects: 

1. Leadership Development Training
a. Leadership pilot program

2. EMD-QA
a. Ops Supervisor Hoyt reviews all cardiac events and calls that include PAIs and

provides weekly feedback to staff, focusing on case review and compliance.
a. Monthly Cardiac Events entered in Yolo County Cardiac Arrest CQI

3. Disaster Recovery Plan
a. Cases completed, ongoing training with the staff on evacuation procedures
b. Cases being used in tactical call outs

4. Recruitment
a. Four applicants have moved forward to the background phase of the selection

process for the April 2023 Academy.
b. Next recruitment is scheduled to open April 2023, with an academy scheduled for

August 2023.
5. Succession Planning
6. 2023 In-Service Training Plan

a. Pre-fire season training- March 2023
b. Active Shooter training- April 2023
c. IROC refresher training- May 2023
d. CTO Train the Trainer- September 2023
e. ProQa refresher training- November 2023

7. CalOES GIS Pilot Project
8. NG9-1-1 Equipment Installations

a. YECA is in Phase 2 (CalOES changed from phase 5 to 2 10/20/2021)
b. CPE Software Upgrade completed 4/13/2021
c. Atos Equipment installation completed 11/15/2021
d. Migration from Comtech Text to 9-1-1 to Rapid Deploy Radius completed

02/23/2022
e. Tentative NG 911 installation in September 2024

9. Tentative CPE installation in September 2024
10. Applicant Tracking System
11. Onboarding Implementation
12. Headset Replacement
13. Employee evaluation model
14. Furniture replacement

11



 Agenda Item: 5.c

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
2022 / 2023  As of 03/23/2023

 
   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Line item JUL-22 AUG-22 SEPT-22 OCT-22 NOV-22 DEC-22 JAN-23 FEB-23 MAR-23 APR-23 MAY-23 JUN-23
B/U 30 ADMINISTRATION

Appropriations 2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$          2,147,761$       2,147,761$       2,147,761$     
Encumbrances -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         266,000$             -$                      -$                     -$                    
Expenditures 74,789$               377,452$             472,787$             525,639$             785,670$             889,270$             926,487$             1,040,197$          1,079,951$          
Unencumbered 2,072,972$          1,770,309$          1,674,974$          1,622,122$          1,362,091$          1,339,224$          1,221,274$          1,107,564$          801,810$             2,147,761$       2,147,761$       2,147,761$     
Percent Expended 3% 18% 22% 24% 37% 41% 43% 48% 63% 0% 0% 0%  

B/U 40 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH
Appropriations 4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$          4,524,852$       4,524,852$       4,524,852$     
Encumbrances -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                      -$                     -$                    
Expenditures 475,444$             778,995$             1,195,557$          1,374,261$          1,782,495$          2,095,741$          2,463,327$          2,763,948$          2,938,301$          
Unencumbered 4,049,408$          3,745,857$          3,329,295$          3,150,591$          2,742,357$          2,429,111$          2,061,525$          1,760,904$          1,586,551$          4,524,852$       4,524,852$       4,524,852$     
Percent Expended 11% 17% 26% 30% 39% 46% 54% 61% 65% 0% 0% 0%

B/U 50 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
Appropriations 702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$             702,140$          702,140$          702,140$        
Encumbrances -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                      -$                    
Expenditures 45,188$               381,404$             426,509$             446,799$             456,029$             495,405$             500,179$             513,451$             551,496$             
Unencumbered -$                         320,736$             275,631$             255,341$             246,111$             206,735$             201,961$             188,689$             150,644$             702,140$          702,140$          702,140$        
Percent Expended 6% 54% 61% 64% 65% 71% 71% 73% 79% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL Appropriations 7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$          7,374,753$       7,374,753$       7,374,753$     
Encumbrances -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         266,000$             -$                      -$                     -$                    
Expenditures 595,421$            1,537,851$         2,094,853$         2,346,699$         3,024,194$         3,480,416$         3,889,994$         4,317,596$         4,569,748$         -$                     -$                     -$                    
Unencumbered 6,779,332$         5,836,902$         5,279,900$         5,028,054$         4,350,559$         3,894,337$         3,484,759$         3,057,157$         2,539,005$         7,374,753$       7,374,753$      7,374,753$     
Percent Expended 8% 21% 28% 32% 41% 47% 53% 59% 66% 0% 0% 0%
TOTAL Estimated Revenue 6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$          6,836,246$       6,836,246$       6,836,246$     
Realized Revenue 351,448$             3,773,352$          3,789,054$          3,789,808$          4,986,237$          4,989,570$          5,016,588$          6,183,311$          6,184,118$          
Unrealized Revenue 6,484,798$         3,062,894$         3,047,192$         3,046,438$         1,850,009$         1,846,676$         1,819,658$         652,935$            652,128$            6,836,246$       6,836,246$      6,836,246$     
Percent Realized 5% 55% 55% 55% 73% 73% 73% 90% 90% 0% 0% 0%

 

12



PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 81              183 67                7 82              292 77           147 80              629 
2 122 1,447 120           127 116          1,498 108           359 118          3,431 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 92              147 37                7 73              249 64           146 75              549 
2 136              999 77           123 142          1,186 100           338 131          2,646 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 107 36 0               -   95 43 62                1 100                80 
2 210 448 144                4 268 312 184 21 232              785 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 430 36 0               -   662 43 84                1 550                80 
2 1237 448 128                4 1188 312 606 21 1195              785 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 159              183 129                7 160              292 64           147 137              629 
2 477 1,447 79           127 360          1,498 130           359 375          3,431 

Quarter 4, 2022 Law Call Statistics

Call Processing Time - All Calls
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to Law Supervisor Notified - No Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to the Law Supervisor Notification of No Units Available

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched After Law Supervisor Notification - No Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched after Law Supervisor Notification has Occurred

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - All Calls - Including Available and Unavailable Units
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
35 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET ~ WOODLAND, CA 95695

(530) 666.8900 ~ Fax (530) 666.8909

13



PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 41             632 55               51 50             711 91 5 91             173 51             1,572 
Code 3 57          1,688 56             159 57          2,200 54               85 60             879 57             5,011 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 17             632 16               51 23             711 18 5 23             173 20             1,572 
Code 3 56          1,688 19             159 35          2,200 18               85 76             879 48             5,011 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 31              272 39                7 42              248 79                4 52                71 38                602 
Code 3 62              424 65              55 64              736 68              31 57              472 62             1,718 
Code 2 48              362 58              44 53              462 143                1 116              103 58                972 
Code 3 55          1,236 51           104 53          1,448 45              54 62              409 55             3,251 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 18              272 16                7 27              248 19                4 30                71 23                602 
Code 3 25              424 23              55 26              736 23              31 26              472 26             1,718 
Code 2 16              362 16              44 19              462 14                1 18              103 18                972 
Code 3 17          1,236 17           104 18          1,448 15              54 21              409 18             3,251 

County Total

Fire Call Types

Medical Aid Call Types

Call Type WDL WNF WSF YDF
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

Call Processing Time - Fire and Medical
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

Call Type WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Fire Call Types

Medical Aid Call Types

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - Fire and Medical

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - All Fire Calls
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Quarter 4, 2022 Fire Call Statistics

Call Processing Time - All Fire Calls
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
35 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET ~ WOODLAND, CA 95695

(530) 666.8900 ~ Fax (530) 666.8909

14



Yolo 

Emergency 

Communications 

Agency 

2022 

Annual Calls  

For Service Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



Table of Contents 

2022 statistics         

cad events   3 

phone calls  3 

all agencies   4 

city of winters    5 

city of woodland    6 

city of west Sacramento  7 

county of yolo   8 

University of California Davis   9 

Yocha dehe wintun nation  10 

Arbuckle 11 

YECA – Yolo 
Emergency 
Communications 
Agency 

EMD – Emergency 
Medical Dispatcher 

CLETS – California 
Law Enforcement 
Telecommunications 
System 

CAD – Computer 
Aided Dispatch  

JPA – Joint Powers 
Authority 

16



CAD Events & All Phone 

2022 Annual Report   Page 3 

YECA utilizes Central Square CAD software to support the 
complexities of YECA’s multi-jurisdictional environment.  

   A  ALL CAD Events = 

 205,500 

 All Fire Events =    All Law Events= 

    17,922  158,645 

  All Medical Events= All Support Events 

    15,431  13,502 

YECA utilizes AT&T’s VESTA phone system to retrieve and 
process incoming and outgoing calls. 

   60,925            66,480  169,331          296,736 
9-1-1 Calls Outgoing Calls        Non-Emergency Calls      Total Calls 

17



All Agencies  

2022 Annual Report Page 4 

Overall YECA 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
Calls for Services 

Law 159,535 158,645 -1%
Fire 17,718 17,922 1% 

Medical 14,065 15,431 10% 
Police Records Entries* 8,492 6,867 -19%

Probation 3,056 3,075 1% 
Public Works/Support 4,896 4,496 -8%

Animal Control 8,019 7,230 -9%
Total 215,781 213,666 -1%

*weighted by time

74%

9%

7%
3%

2%
2%

3%

7%

2022 OVERALL STATISTICS
Law Fire Medical Police Records Entries* Probation Public Works/Support Animal Control

18



City of Winters 

2022 Annual Report page 5 

Agency 

*weighted by time

Agency 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
City of Winters 

Police 7,206 7,636 6% 
Police Records Entries* 186 203 9% 

Fire 679 628 -8%
Medical 413 570 38% 

Public Works 58 60 3% 
Animal Control 181 256 41% 
CLETS Returns 24,182 22,776 -6%

Phone Calls 11,883 11,869 0% 
Total 44,788 43,998 -2%

19



City of Woodland 

2022 Annual Report page 6 

Agency 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
City of Woodland 

Police 63,168 60,901 -4%
Police Records Entries* 4,461 2,681 -40%

Fire 4,713 4,734 0% 
Medical 5,368 5,732 7% 

Public Works 992 1,019 3% 
Animal Control 2,295 2,406 5% 
CLETS Returns 229,765 204,988 -11%

Total Phone Calls 112,893 106,824 -5%
Total 423,655 389,285 -8%

*weighted by time

20



City of West Sacramento 

2022 Annual Report page 7 

Agency 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
City of West Sacramento 

Police 55,526 56,085 1% 
Police Records Entries* 3,845 3,983 4% 

Fire 4,431 5,125 16% 
Medical 6,305 6,912 10% 

Public Works 568 518 -9%
Animal Control 3,029 2,103 -31%
CLETS Returns 205,553 193,600 -6%

Total Phone Calls 101,009 100,890 0% 
Total 380,266 369,216 -3%

*weighted by time

21



County of Yolo 

2022 Annual Report page 8 

Agency 

Agency 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
County of Yolo 

Sheriff 30,515 32,724 7% 
Fire 6,346 5,861 -8%

Medical 1,168 1,172 0% 
Public Works 260 198 -24%

Animal Control 2,514 2,465 -2%
District Attorney 6 2 -67%

Maintenance 36 21 -42%
Probation 3,056 3,075 1% 

Social Services 1,253 1,212 -3%
Environmental Health 14 7 -50%
Explosive Ordinance 16 13 -19%

Fire Service Misc. 365 365 0% 
Public Guardian 51 57 12% 
CLETS Returns 145,097 125,270 -14%

Total Phone Calls 71,301 65,281 -8%
Total 261,998 237,723 -9%

22



University of California Davis 

2022 Annual Report page 9 

Contract Fire 
2021 
Total 

2022 
Total 

% 
Change 

UC Davis Fire 
Fire 857 1,037 21% 

Medical 410 580 41% 
Move-Ups 164 132 -20%

Total 1,431 1,749 22% 

23



Yocha Dehe Fire 

2022 Annual Report page 10 

Agency 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation 

Fire 137 147 7% 
Medical 250 248 -1%

Total 387 395 2% 

24



Arbuckle Fire 

2022 Annual Report page 11 

Contract Fire 2021 Total 2022 Total % Change 
Arbuckle 

Fire 260 237 -9%
Medical 204 234 15% 

Total 464 471 2% 

25



YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 

SUMMARY OF FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 AUDIT RESULTS 

April 5, 2023 

Presentation by Richardson & Company, LLP of the Audited Financial Statements, including the 
following communications required by Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 

Reports issued 
Audited Financial Statements with auditors opinion 
Internal Control and Compliance Reports Required communications letter 
Management letter with recommendations 

Independent Auditor’s Report (pages 1 to 3) 
Unmodified (clean) opinion 

Highlights of financial statements 
Statement of Net Position (page 4) 

Negative unrestricted net position of $1.3 million due to pension and OPEB obligations 
New lease liability recorded for equipment and Bald Mountain property 
Statement of Activities (page 5) 

Revenues exceed expenses by $433,000 (including non cash expenses:  depreciation of 
$660,000, pension of $(439,000) and OPEB of $244,00)) 

General Fund Balance Sheet (page 6) 
Fund balance assigned for various purposes of $2.5 million 

Unassigned fund balance of $775,000 
General Fund Revenue/Expense (page 8) 

Net income (addition to reserves) of $410,000 
Pension Plan, Note 6 (pages 21 to 25) – liability decreased $2.3 million to $1.4 million due 
to unusually large investment earnings on plan assets as of June 30, 2021 measurement date 
OPEB Plan, Note 8 (pages 26 to 30)—liability increased $319,000 due to no prefunding of 

plan and updated actuarial assumptions Budget to Actual Comparison (page 38) 

Budgeted deficit of $175,000, actual surplus of $352,000 

Reports on Internal Control and Compliance (page 43) 
Clean report 
No internal control weaknesses or compliance issues 

Required Communications Letter  
Significant estimates used—pension and OPEB amounts are volatile 
Audit adjustments – 2 audit adjustments identified 
No difficulties in performing the audit and no unusual accounting practices 

Management letter 
One areas of improvement noted 
Obtain payroll journal entry from payroll system  

26



 
 

550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS LETTER 

To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 

We have audited the financial statements of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2023.  Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.  Professional standards also require that 
we provide you with the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS) and Government 
Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated February 3, 2020, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of YECA.  Such considerations were solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of YECA’s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants.  However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on compliance 
with such provisions. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 

Our audit included obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing, and extent of further auditing procedures.  Material misstatements may result from (1) 
errors, (2) fraudulent financial report, (3) misappropriation of assets, of (4) violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting 
on behalf of the entity.  We have communicated internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under professional standards in a separate letter. We performed the audit according to the 
planned scope previously communicated to you in our engagement letter dated February 3, 2020. 

27



To the Board of Directors 
Page 2 

 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. YECA 
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87, Leases.  The 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 resulted in the recognition of a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset.  Note 4 to the financial statements describes the impact of GASB 
Statement No. 87 on the YECA’s financial statements.  The significant accounting policies used by 
YECA are described in Note A to the financial statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and 
the application of existing policies was not changed during the year.  We noted no transaction entered into 
by YECA during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Accounting estimates are used in determining the depreciable lives and methods used for 
capital assets and the valuation of the OPEB liability and net pension liability.  The depreciable lives and 
methods used for capital assets affects the amount of depreciation expense that is recorded and are based 
on YECA’s estimate of the useful lives of the assets.  The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial 
report, which is based on assumptions including future employment, retirement rates and future costs of 
health care and health insurance.  The net pension liability was determined through an actuarial valuation 
performed by CalPERS, which is performed annually.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions 
used to develop the estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements were: 

Pension Liability:  Information on YECA’s pension plans, including YECA’s share of the unfunded 
pension liability, is shown in Note 6.  YECA’s share of the unfunded pension liability at June 30, 
2021, the most recent measurement date, was $1,422,635 which is reflected as a liability in YECA’s 
financial statements as of June 30, 2022. The pension liability decreased by $2,293,155 due to the 
unusually large investment earnings on the CalPERS plan assets as of the June 30, 2021 valuation. 

Other Postemployment Benefits:  Information on YECA’s other postemployment benefits is included 
in Note 8. YECA’s unfunded OPEB liability at June 30, 2021, the most recent measurement date, was 
$3,571,026 which is reflected as a liability in YECA’s financial statements as of June 30, 2022.  The 
liability continues to increase because YECA is not pre-funding the Plan, only paying premiums for 
current retirees. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
Two adjustments were noted as a result of our audit, related to additional adjustments provided by YECA 
after the start of the audit and implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 

28



To the Board of Directors 
Page 3 

 

Disagreements With Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated March 23, 2023. 

Management Consultations With Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to YECA’s financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the other postemployment benefits schedule of funding progress, 
schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions to the 
pension plan, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial 
statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of YECA and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
March 23, 2023 

29



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Yolo Emergency Communications 
Agency (YECA) for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, we considered YECA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for determining our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal 
control.  However, during our audit we became aware of the following matters that have been included in 
this letter for your consideration. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given these 
limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The following matters have been included in this letter for your consideration: 

ADP Payroll Register:  We were not able to tie the ADP payroll register directly to expenses as part of our 
audit procedures. We were able alternatively agree the cash disbursement to the general ledger. We 
recommend that the Agency work with ADP to provide a journal entry that will agree expenses to those 
listed on the payroll register. 

* * * * *

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us during 
the course of the audit. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board, management, 
and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specific parties. 

March 23, 2023 

30



        STAFF REPORT  

Agenda Item: 8.a 

Date:  April 5, 2023 

To:  YECA Governing Board 

From:    Dena Humphrey, Executive Director  

Subject: YECA Proposed Draft Budget for FY23/24 – *Information Only    

Summary: 

This year’s proposed budget for FY23/24 captures the operational costs for current staffing of 46 FTE’s.   
The FY23/24 Proposed Budget is inclusive of all bargaining costs for the represented and non-
represented.            

Agency Overall:   
The total final budget for FY23/24 is $7,733,861.  The use of surplus funds $350k, and revenue from the 
UCD Fire contract $137k, Arbuckle Fire $44k, Homeland Security Grants $164k, T-Mobile lease 
agreement $35k, and $47k in bank interest and IRS Subsidies brought a total reduction of $777k, to the 
member allocations.  Revenue offsets for member allocations increased $34k or 6%.   

The total net budget increase from previous year was $161,517, or a 2.65% increase.  Majority of the 
increase came from salaries $150k, YCPARMIA increases, utilities, and software.       

FY23/24 will be year 7 of the 10-year capital plan.  In prior years, capital costs were presented separately 
and typically funded with bond money or fund balance.  The CIP now includes a 10-year forecast, which 
evenly allocates money yearly into the capital fund to ease spikes to members and ensures future funding 
for needed equipment.   

Cost Changes for FY23/24:  
Salaries & benefits for 46 FTE’s increased by $150k or 2.8%.  The cost increase is inclusive of 
bargaining and reflects overall increases from i.e., CalPERS, Merits, COLA’s, Medical, and OPEB.  
Total salaries increased $75k, or 50% from previous year’s budget.  CalPERS costs increased $13k, or 
1.9% from previous year’s budgeted amount.  CalPERS Medical increased $32k, or 3.9%. YCPARMIA 
Workmen’s Compensation increased $20k or 20%.   

Supplies & Services major object resulted in an increase of $53k, or 4.4%.  A major contributor to this 
increase came from YCPARMIA with a $28k, increase in General Liability this was a 23% increase from 
previous budget; while utilities and software costs have also increased.  

31



Fiscal Year Comparison 
Current year budget FY22/23 comparison to FY23/24 proposed budget: 

Proposed 
Major Objects FY22/23 FY23/24 Change Percent 
Total Salaries & Benefits  $   5,458,966  $   5,609,621  $   150,655 2.7% 
Total Service & Supplies  $   1,193,863  $   1,246,890  $     53,027 4.4% 
Total Other Charges  $      353,924  $      345,447  $     (8,477) -2.4%
Capital Equipment & Reserve  $      368,000  $      531,903  $   163,903 30.8%
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS  $   7,374,753  $   7,733,861  $   359,108   4.8% 

Total Member Contribution  $   6,444,329  $   6,631,757  $   187,428  3.9% 
Total Capital Lease Payments  $      351,424  $    342,947   $     (8,477) -2.4%
Total Other   $      579,000  $      759,157    $   180,157 31.0% 
TOTAL REVENUE  $   7,374,753  $   7,733,861  $   359,108    4.8% 

FY22/23 Current Year – Reserve Balance Summary: 
The General Reserve established Nov 2015 for emergency needs has a current balance $1.324M, 
representing 20% of the current FY23 operating budget (goal set by the JPA Board 20%).   

The Capital/Special Projects Reserve is expected to have an FY22/23 yearend balance of $1.053M.  

Five years ago the Board approved the setting aside of a small contingency fund primarily set up for 
radio equipment failures.  This year the contingency fund has not been needed, resulting in an unspent 
balance of $50k.  

FY22/23 
Current Reserve Balances

32



FY23/24 Proposed – Reserve Balance Summary: 
The proposed recommendation is to keep the $1.324M balance the same for FY23/24.  This would 
reflect 19% of the operating budget in reserves reaching 97% of the Board’s goal.  Given the facility 
needs to replace the roof, no recommendation is being made to increase the General Reserve at this time. 

The Capital/Special Projects Reserve proposed budget includes a contribution of $368k into the fund for 
FY24, leaving the balance at $1,085M, an increase of $31k.         

Proposed FY23/24 
Reserve Balances

Use of Fund Balance 
The agency realized a $775k fund balance, $200k is money set –aside for grant matches allocated 
last year by the YECA Board.  The remaining balance $575k, is a result of vacancies and 
carryovers from prior years, as noted in the FY21/22 Financial Audit.  As a result, the agency 
proposes the following use of funds: 

1. To offset member shares for FY23/24, the use of $350k from fund balance was built into the
FY23/24 Budget.

2. Yolo County General Services completed a roofing assessment and provided a full report
detailing the roof’s condition.  The estimated replacement cost is approximately $220k.

3. This year a request is being made to assist the IT Division with an extra help person.

Description    Year Amount Fund Division 
 Offset Member Shares for FY24 Budget 

YECA Building Roof   
Temporary Help – IT Technician  

FY24 
FY24 
FY24 

$ 350,000 
$      200,000 
$        25,000 

#10 
#20 

         #10 

#30 

Total $      575,000 

33



Proposed Draft FY23/24 Member Agency Allocations 

The agency allocations shown on the table below reflects operations & maintenance on a side by side 
comparison with the CIP allocation.   

For the FY23/24 proposed draft budget encompassing member formula allocation, after-hour records 
were disregarded for both the Cities of Woodland & Winters for their three-year rolling averages.      

*Note: the scheduled debt service payment will be paid fully Nov 2025

Agency Totals       Current Year’s 
Allocations 

New Proposed 
Allocations Amount Change Percent 

FY 22/23 FY 23/24 Increase/ (Decrease) 

Winters - O&M/Capital $262,676 $276,676 $14,000 

Winters - Debt Service $21,837 $21,808 ($29) 

Total $284,513 $298,484 $13,971 5% 

Woodland - O&M/ Capital $2,327,395 $2,386,204 $58,809 

Woodland - Debt Service $96,367 $96,239 ($128) 

Total $2,423,762 $2,482,443 $58,681 2% 

West Sac - O&M/Capital $2,182,265 $2,234,648 ($52,383) 

West Sac - Debt Service $55,069 $54,995 ($74) 

Total $2,237,334 $2,289,643 $52,309 2% 

Yolo County - O&M/Capital $1,628,665 $1,663,375 $34,710 

Yolo County - Debt Service $142,833 $142,643 ($190) 

Total $1,771,498 $1,806,018 $34,520 2% 

Yocha Dehe - O&M/Capital $69,238 $70,854 $1,616 

Yocha Dehe - Debt Service $8,557 $8,545 ($12) 
Total $77,795 $79,399 $1,604 2% 

34



5-Year Projections (FY23/24 – FY27/28)

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
12.47% 12.5% 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%

336,522$       349,982$      362,232$      374,910$      388,032$      
309,925$       297,000$      271,000$      245,000$      209,000$      

646,447$     646,982$    633,232$    619,910$    597,032$    

- 535$            (13,750)$       (13,322)$       (22,878)$       
- - -2.1% -2.1% -3.7%

UAL$
Total CalPERS Cost 

CalPERS 

Employer Normal Cost%:

Employer Normal Cost

5-Year Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates

Percent Change 
Amount Change 

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28
89,686$        91,879$        91,182$        94,214$        96,992$        

- 2,193$          (697)$           $3,032 2,778$          
- 2.0% - 3.3% 3.0%Percent Change 

Amount Change 

OPEB 
5-Year Projected Annual Benefit

Annual Projected Cost 

Members FY23/24 FY24/25 FY25/26 FY26/27 FY27/28
Winters 298,484$         310,423$         322,840$         335,754$         349,184$         
Woodland 2,482,443$       2,581,741$       2,685,010$       2,792,411$       2,904,107$       
W. Sac 2,289,643$       2,381,229$       2,476,478$       2,575,537$       2,678,558$       
Yolo 1,806,018$       1,878,259$       1,953,389$       2,031,525$       2,112,786$       
Yocha Deha 79,399$           82,575$           85,878$           89,313$           92,886$           
Total 6,955,987$       7,234,226$       7,523,596$       7,824,539$       8,137,521$       

Amount Change - 278,239$         289,369$         300,944$         312,982$         
Percent Change - 3.9% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

5-Year YECA Member Annual Projection

   In summary, the proposed FY23/24 Budget reflects on average a 2% increase per member.  The above 
projection uses 4% increases and is inclusive of the debt service; resulting in an added buffer for this 
projection especially in FY25/26 when the debt service is fully paid off.  The current CalPERS pension 
evaluation projects costs to begin decreasing in FY25/26, however uncertainty remains with the potential 
lowering of the discount rate.    

35



STAFF REPORT 

Agenda Item:  8.b 

Date: April 5, 2023 

To: YECA Governing Board 

From:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director   

Subject:          Proposed FY23/24 Capital Investment Plan (CIP) 

Summary: 

The Final CIP costs for FY24 is a continuation of the 10-year plan.  The initial draft to the Board 
for the 10-year CIP was approved April 2017.  The plan identifies when the asset is needed along 
with potential funding streams from grants or State reimbursements.  The projected Capital/Special 
Projects fund balance at FY23 yearend is projected to be $1.053M.  

The Board approved a fixed overall contribution of $368k into the plan. This allows member 
agencies to receive a stable allocation for capital costs and provides YECA necessary funds for 
fluent operations. The total cost over the 10-year plan is estimated $3.7M comprising of multiple 
equipment replacements throughout the years, primarily focusing on the replacement of the 
microwave system and radios in years FY24 and FY26.   

The FY23/24 proposed expenditures for equipment is approximately $500k.  The approved grants 
expected to fund partial of FY24 equipment expenditures is 33% or $164k, leaving the balance to 
be paid by the annual member CIP contribution.  

Current FY22/23 CIP Items – Status 

TSM 8000 Server – Microwave: (Slated for Completion May 2023)       
This server is the logging point for all radio system alarms from all equipment throughout the 
system. It is also the primary access point for programming and configuration of radio 
infrastructure. 

36



Proposed FY23/24 CIP Items:      

Dispatch Furniture Consoles:  
The current furniture in the communications center was purchased 20 years ago and is showing its 
age being used 24 x 7.  The $85k, amount was used five years ago as a budgetary figure.  Recent 
quotes have projected the budgetary costs to be approximately $260k. 

R740 Servers (2):     
The R730 servers are physical servers that support the virtual server infrastructure that are end-of-
life servers for the network (CAD, Email, file storage, CLETS, etc.) that are in need of replacement 
due to age. 

9-1-1 Voice Logger (Server):
The 9-1-1 voice logger records the primary VHF/UHF channels and telephone calls that are made
and received from the Vesta phone system.  These servers have reached end of life.

SAN (Disaster Recovery):  
The offsite SAN is a storage array (1 of 2) that stores YECA’s backup jobs offsite to preserve data 
in the event of a catastrophic failure at YECA (fire, flood, power spike that destroys the boxes, etc.) 
that has reached end of life. 

Portable Radio’s:  
This is to replace YECA’s existing cache of portable back-up radios in the event of a console radio 
going down to communicate to the field or during an evacuation of the center.  

Summary of costs for Proposed FY23/24 CIP Items: 

Project Cost Status 
Dispatch Furniture   $           260,000 Slated for FY24 

R740 Servers    $            52,000 Slated for FY24 

911 Voice Loggers   $            63,000    Slated for FY24 

SAN  $            90,000 Slated for FY24 

Portable Radios (5)  $            35,000 Slated for FY24 

TOTAL  $          500,000 

37



Agenda Item: 8.c 

FY23/24 CIP 
4-Year Projection

Project FY 23-24 FY 24-25 FY 25-26 FY 26-27
Furniture
Dispatch Consoles $260,000

Server Room
R740 Servers $52,000
Offsite SAN (Disaster Recovery)
UPS
Core Switches (6) $66,000
Internet Firewalls $16,000
Interagency Firewalls $7,000
911 Voice Logger (Server only)  I $52,000
911 Voice Logger (Server only)  II $11,000
SAN $90,000
R730 Servers (2)

Radio/911 Equipment Room
Radio/Microwave Multiplexor $380,000
Batteries for Radio Power Plant
Dispatch 911 Phones (CPE) $370,000
TSM 8000 Server - Microwave 
Zetron Toning System
Radios $35,000 $235,000
Microwave Radios $135,000
Channel Banks $135,000
GPS Clocks $20,000
Comparators $205,000

Radio Sites
Batteries for Radio Power Plant
Generator for Bald
Radios $590,000
Microwave Radios $550,000
Channel Banks $100,000
GPS Clocks $130,000
HVAC $60,000 $60,000
Building 

Totals $500,000 $825,000 $519,000 $1,715,000

Total per Funding Source $163,903 $90,000 $82,000 $90,000

$452,000

Member Agencies $336,097 $735,000 $67,000 $1,625,000

Annual Sinking Fund $368,000 $368,000 $368,000 $368,000

Annual Balance $31,903 -$367,000 $301,000 -$1,257,000

Running Balance $1,148,430 $781,430 $1,082,430 -$174,570

Legend Highlight:
     Green = Approved Grant Funding 
     Yellow = Potential Grant Funding
     Grey = Agency Funded 

38



8.d Proposed FY23/24 Position Table

Authorized Position Resolution as of 
03/28/2023 

Current Proposed 

Active Positions  Effective  
FTE 

Auth  
FTE 

Funded 
FTE 

Vacant 
FTE 

Current 

Proposed 
FTE 

Changes 
FTE Auth & 

Funded 
1 Executive Director 2015 1 1 1 1 
2 HR/Fiscal Administrator 2016 0 0 0 0 
3 Administrative Specialist II 2008 0 0 0 0 
4 Operations Manager 2008 0 0 0 0 
5 Dispatch Supervisor 1999 4 4 4 4 
6 911/Public Safety Dispatcher I/II 2015 26 26 4 22 26 
7 911/Public Safety Dispatcher III 2006 4 4  2 2 4 
8 Dispatch Assistant 2014 4 4 4 4 
9 IT Systems Manager 2012 1 1 1 1 

10 Sr. Radio Administrator 2013 0 0 0 0 
11 Radio Systems Administrator 2008 0 0 0 0 
12 Systems Administrator 2018 1 1 1 1 
13 Information Technology Specialist 2018 1 1 1 1 
14 Accountant II 2021 1 1 1 0 1 
15 Deputy Director 2021 1 1 1 1 
16 Operations Supervisor 2021 1 1 1 1 
17 Sr. Administrative Specialist – Confidential  2022 1 1 1 1 
18 Information Technology Technician 2023 0 0 0 0 

Totals 46 46 7 39 46 

39



 

STAFF REPORT 

 

Agenda Item: 8.e     

 

Date:  April 5, 2023  

To:  YECA Governing Board 

Thru:  Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 

From:   Billy Keen, Information Technology Manager  

Subject: IT Staffing Summary – IT Helpdesk Technician (Extra-Help) Request   

 

Summary:   

YECA’s IT staff is currently comprised of three (3) FTE’s, including an IT Manager, Systems 
Administrator and IT Specialist. These staff monitor, manage, maintain, and upgrade IT 
infrastructure, radio infrastructure, phone infrastructure, project management, and assist with 
member agency dispatch related projects. Staff also provides 24/7/365 after-hours support for all 
network systems and radio infrastructure outages.  

Department Staffing History:  

Over the past sixteen (16) years to present, the total number of FTE’s was reduced from five (5) 
to three (3). During the elimination process of the positions, workloads were distributed to 
existing FTE’s. 

 

40



 
Department Responsibilities: 

After-Hours On-Call: 

Department staff provide 6,236 hours of 24x7x365 on-call services annually to dispatch and 
member agency units for emergency issues and outages while they are required to maintain a 60 
minute response time to YECA if on-site support is required. IT staff averages 40 hours of after-
hour callouts annually. An after-hours call-out can range from a 15-minute remote support call to 
a 4+ hour on-site response.  

Helpdesk Support: 

Helpdesk tickets are one metric that is utilized by the department to track and log reported issues 
and enhancements. In 2019, IT processed 1,515 helpdesk tickets which increased to 2,025 tickets 
in 2022. Based on historical data, YECA projects an 11% increase of helpdesk tickets annually 
due to projects, upgrades, and implementations.  

 
User Accounts and Unit Support: 

The IT department supports over 2,500 user accounts and 3,125 units for YECA and its member 
agencies. This support includes password management, account creation/deletion, application 
support, hardware support, enhancement requests, upgrades, and issue tracking. 

Network, Servers and Other Hardware: 

Hardware supported includes 90 servers which require over 1,350 hours annually to install 
patches, upgrade, and maintain. Also supported are 360 individual hardware devices that include 
desktops, laptops, security cameras, radios, etc. To maintain public safety standard and reliable 
infrastructure, YECA maintains a five (5) to eight (8) year replacement cycle pending the 
longevity of support on individual equipment. This requires all equipment to be replaced on a 
rotating cycle to ensure high standard dispatching services while decreasing downtime and 
cybersecurity risk.   

41



YECA maintains a complex network infrastructure that includes a physical production network, 
virtual production network, physical disaster recovery network and radio network. These 
networks are made up of over forty (40) switches, routers and miscellaneous network devices that 
are managed, maintained and updated with new firmware on a quarterly basis to decrease the risk 
of cybersecurity exploits. Patching all devices require approximately 250 hours annually.   

YECA’s network has secure connections to outside networks that include; Cities of West 
Sacramento, Woodland, Winters, County of Yolo, Yocha Dehe Winton Nation, Yolo Superior 
Court, DOJ. These connections allow for; CAD/Mobile software access, records checks, RMS 
system access, fire station alerting and data sharing.   

Cybersecurity: 

Due to the critical nature of networks and applications maintained by YECA, cybersecurity is at 
the upmost importance to YECA’s IT staff. Cybersecurity is maintained internally with project 
support from vendors during critical hardware and software upgrades. Possible threats and 
exploits are investigated by the staff when alerted by monitoring software to evaluate the alert and 
verify the infrastructures security and stability and ensure no threat has infiltrated production 
systems. 

Applications: 

Over 45 applications are supported by YECA for use by admin, dispatch, and member agency 
staff.  The largest application supported is the Computer Aided Dispatch application. Installed in 
2013, this application requires more application support when compared to the previous CAD 
system. In 2022, CAD tickets into the YECA helpdesk were 813, making up 40% of all tickets 
processed by IT. The CAD system is upgraded semi-annually which requires approximately 320 
hours annually for upgrade investigation, coordination, installation and testing. The CAD system 
also provided additional features available for member agencies that were not available before 
2013. One primary feature is the ability for integrations into 3rd party applications to share data. 
This is a feature that has been utilized by a majority of member agencies with internal projects 
throughout their departments. YECA currently maintains and supports 15 external CAD 
connections with 3rd party vendors including:  

- CAD to CAD (AMR) 
- PulsePoint 
- ImageTrend (UCD/WNF/YDF Fire RMS) 
- Emergency Reporting (MDS/WOF/KNI/DNN/YOL/PAY/WPL Fire RMS) 
- Zoll (WDL/WSF Fire RMS) 
- Inform RMS (WSP/WDP RMS) 
- First Watch (Fire Stats) 
- Active911 (Volunteer Fire Agencies) 
- Fusus (WSP) 
- Comtech (WDL/WSF/UCD/WNF/YDF Fire Station Alerting) 
- ProQA (Medical Call Processing) 
- Fire Dashboard (WPL) 
- LiveMUM (Fire Station Move-up Notifications) 
- SSRS Reporting 
- AD Integration (Password Consolidation) 

42



Radio System: 

YECA currently maintains a contract with Sutter Buttes Communications for radio technician 
support and system maintenance. IT staff currently is responsible of fielding all radio complaints 
from dispatch and field units to evaluate and gather initial information prior to calling out 
technicians. Throughout the troubleshooting process IT is monitoring the progress of issues and 
reporting to dispatch, field units, command staff, and administration of the status and estimated 
repair completion timelines. YECA maintains 7 radio sites throughout Yolo County that contain 
generators, battery plants, A/C systems, and microwave systems. The IT staff monitors this 
equipment and works with vendors for all repairs and escorts technicians to all sites during repairs 
and preventative maintenance 24/7. 

This work was previously managed by the Radio Systems Administrator before being 
consolidated into the IT department with the elimination of that position by the board in August 
of 2013. Approximately 500 hours of work annually is spent on Radio system, network, and 
facility support.  

Project Management: 

IT staff assists in the management and technical resources for many IT, Operations and member 
agency projects. Internal YECA projects include IT staff to advise in technical aspects and 
involvement is often times involved throughout the duration of the project. Member agencies will 
reach out to YECA IT staff and ask for assistance on external projects within their perspective 
agencies. There are currently six (6) active member agency projects requiring status meeting 
attendance and YECA IT support. Some examples of these workloads include; RMS projects, fire 
station alerting upgrades, CAD data analytic software implementations, network upgrades and 
real time CAD data analytics, displays and alerting. Any member agency project that contains 
CAD data for analytics or real time alerting involves YECA IT staff along with ongoing support 
and maintenance of the CAD interface. Participation in member agency project status meetings 
and working with technical staff and vendors averages more than 300 hours of work annually 
while increasing ongoing workloads in annual support in future years.   

 

Increased Workloads: 

Over the last 16 years, technology advancements have required YECA and Member Agencies to 
implement many improvements and upgrades to ensure secure network infrastructures and 
application deployments. This has caused workloads to increase for all staff. The following are 
the areas of significant increases in staff time to support, maintain, an consult services. 

Hardware & Software: 

- Servers 
o Additional 65 servers or a 350% increase over 16 years 

- Disaster Recovery System 
o 7 additional Virtual Server Hosts, Firewalls, and Switches  
o 7 Evacuation/Tactical Dispatch Cases  
o DR Backup and Recovery Software 

43



CAD: 

- New CAD System
o Increased application support required

 Increased annual ticket compared to previous CAD system in 2013 of 663
tickets or 440%

o 15 new CAD 3rd party interface applications
 Historical data reflects a projected trend of 2 new additional interfaces per

year

Helpdesk: 

- Annual helpdesk ticket increase 300 or 15% 

Radio: 

- Radio Site Facility Upgrades since 2007
o 6 additional radio sites
o Battery Power and A/C Systems

- Simulcasting of 4 Radio Frequencies
- Radio System Administrator workload added to IT Staff

Projects: 

- Increase of Member Agency technical advancement projects requesting CAD data
connections

Request: 

YECA is requesting approval to create an IT Helpdesk Technician position as Extra-Help. This 
position will be limited to 16 hours per week with an annual cost of $21,216 - $25,792. This 
position will provide Tier-1 technical support for YECA staff to relieve lower level tasks and 
responsibilities in order for remaining staff to concentrate on higher level technical needs.  

IT Helpdesk Technician (Extra-help) 
STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 

Current  $    25.50  $    26.78  $    28.11  $    29.52  $    31.00 

Long Range Planning: 

Over the next three years, YECA’s Radio infrastructure will migrate from an analog system to an 
IP network based system. This change will put additional workloads on IT as it will involve 
switches, routers, firewalls, etc. At this point in time it would become inevitable to request one (1) 
FTE for this oversight of YECA’s Radio System, potentially in FY25/26. 

44



YECA               Position Description 
Position:  IT Helpdesk Technician (Extra-help) Position Number:   

Department:  Information Technology FSLA: 

Reports to:  Information Technology Manager Salary Grade:  

 
Summary 
 

Performs a variety of technical duties that include configuring workstations and printers, 
installing Microsoft applications and updates, and troubleshooting user-level issues with 
hardware devices and a variety of software applications.  This is a temporary extra-help 
position, minimum of 8 hours and a maximum of 20 hours per week.  

 
Distinguishing Characteristics 
 

This is an entry level, extra-help, position in the IT Division under the general direction of 
the Information Technology Manager.  The incumbent is given job oversight by the IT 
Specialist and/or System Administrator.  Incumbents perform general, user-level technical 
support functions, including the installation, configuration and maintenance of workstations, 
laptops, printers and a variety of operating system and application software.   

 
Essential Duties and Responsibilities 
The statements contained below reflect general details as necessary to describe the principle functions of 
this job, the level of knowledge, skills typically required, and the scope of responsibility, but should not be 
considered an all-inclusive listing of work requirements. 

 
 Helps maintain an inventory of all computer software/hardware and systems.  

 
 Acts as technical resource in assisting users to resolve problems with equipment and 

data; staffs a centralized help desk to facilitate exchange of information and advice. 
 
 Will install, configure, and maintain workstations, laptops, and printers. 

 
 Troubleshoots problems with computer systems, including hardware, operating 

systems, and applications. Makes repairs or corrections where required. Documents 
all actions taken to complete the repair.  

 
 Helps maintain current knowledge of hardware and software technology. 

 
 Helps maintain documentation for each software application or system. 

 
 Provides system users both in person and over the phone with system use 

instructions and troubleshooting steps. 
 
 Provides preventative maintenance and upgrades for a variety of systems. 
 
 Performs other related duties to accomplish the objectives of the position.  

 
 Assist vendors with access to remote radio sites throughout Yolo County 

45



 
 
Qualifications 
 
 Knowledge and Skills 

Requires the ability to analyze problems, identify solutions and implement methods, 
procedures and techniques for resolution. A working knowledge of the practices, techniques, 
and methods of computer hardware and software installation and maintenance.  Must 
communicate effectively with end-users and technical staff.  Working knowledge of 
Windows 10 and Windows 11 is highly desirable. Basic knowledge of computer networking 
(TCP/IP) is desirable. 

 
 Abilities 

Must be able to perform all of the relevant duties of the position with general supervision.  
Must be able to operate a variety of computer workstations, printers, operating systems, and 
hardware. Ability to read, understand and apply information from technical manuals and 
prioritize work in order to meet deadlines and maintain schedules.  

 
 Physical Abilities 

This position involves light to medium work including walking, standing, stooping, carrying 
and lifting of light to medium weight materials (10-50 pounds).  Requires visual acuity and 
depth perception, strong arm, hand and finger dexterity, and hand-eye coordination.  
Requires speaking and hearing ability sufficient to hear over phone and carry on routine 
conversations.  

 
 Education, Experience, Special Skills 

Education equivalent to completion of one year of college-level coursework in a technical 
field or one year on the job training in the installation and support of Windows 10, Windows 
11, Microsoft Office Suite, and basic networking principles is required. Candidates with 
working knowledge of Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Access, Microsoft Word, Microsoft 
Outlook and Adobe Acrobat are preferred. 

 
 Licenses and Certificates 

Must possess and maintain a valid California class C driver’s license and a satisfactory 
driving record.   

 

46


	BOARD PACKET APRIL
	April 5, 2023 Agenda
	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING
	YECA GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, April 5, 2023
	2:00 P.M. Public Session
	Yolo Emergency Communications Agency, 35 N. Cottonwood St, Woodland, CA 95695

	November 2nd, 2022 Board Minutes DRAFT
	November 2, 2022
	2:00 P.M. Special Session

	December 14th 2022 Board Minutes
	December 14, 2022
	1:00 P.M. Special Session

	January 25th, 2023 Board Minutes DRAFT
	January 25, 2023
	1:30 P.M. Special Session

	5.b 2023_JanFebCombinedOpsDivisionReport
	5.d FireCallStats-2022Q4
	2022 Fire Q4 Stats

	5.d LawCallStats-2022Q4
	2022 Law Q4 Stats

	5.e 2022 Annual CFS Report
	1 2022 Annual Report Cover page
	2 2022 Annual Report Table of Contents
	3 2022 Annual Report CAD & Phone Events- Draft
	4 2022 Annual ALL Agencies- Draft
	5 2022 Annual Report Winters- Draft
	6 2022 Annual Report Woodland- Draft
	7 2022 Annual Report W Sacramento- Draft
	8 2022 Annual Report Yolo- Draft
	9 2022 Annual Report UCD FD- Draft
	10 2022 Annual Report Yocha Dehe- Draft
	11 2022 Annual Report Arbuckle- Draft

	8.a FY24 Proposed Budget
	8.b FY24 Proposed CIP Summary
	8.c FY24 Proposed CIP Table
	8.d FY24 Proposed Authorized Position Table
	YECA Audit Summary
	YECA SAS 114 Letter 2022
	YECA ML 2022

	YECA Budget Mgmt Summry_MARCH2023
	Plan vs. Actual Variance Report





YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Independent Auditor’s Reports, 


Basic Financial Statements and 


Required Supplementary information 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 


Return to board packet







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentional Left Blank 







 
Table of Contents 


 
Page(s) 


 
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................ 1-3 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 


Statement of Net Position – Governmental Activities ..................................................................... 4 
 
Statement of Activities – Governmental Activities ......................................................................... 5 
 
Balance Sheet – General Fund ......................................................................................................... 6 
 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ............................................ 7 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in 
 Fund Balance – General Fund ...................................................................................................... 8 
 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
 Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities ............................................................... 9 
 


 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ................................................................................. 10 - 32 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
  
 Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios .................................................. 33 
 
 Schedule of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ........................................ 34 
 
 Schedule of YECA’s Pension Contributions ................................................................................. 35 
 
 Notes to the Required Supplementary Information .................................................................. 36-37 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
  Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund  ........................................................................... 38 
 
 Budget and Budgetary Accounting Note ....................................................................................... 39 
 
Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
  Balance – Budget and Actual – Budgetary Authority ........................................................... 40-42 
 
 
Other Report: 
 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
   and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
   Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ............................ 43 
   
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 


Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 


1 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Yolo Emergency Communications 
Agency (YECA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise YECA’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of YECA as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America as well as accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations 
governing special districts. 


Basis for Opinions 


We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements 
for California Special Districts.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the YECA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 


Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the YECA’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.   


Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 







To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 


2 


not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements.  


In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we:  


 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  


 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  


 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the YECA’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  


 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  


 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the YECA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time.  


We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 


Required Supplementary Information 


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of 
changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, schedule of pension contributions and budgetary comparison information be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 


Supplementary Information 


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise YECA’s financial statements.  The budgetary comparison schedules by budgetary authority are 







To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 


3 


presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
These schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 


Other Information 


Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 23, 2023 
on our consideration of YECA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose 
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering YECA’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 


 
March 23, 2023 
 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentional Left Blank 







 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







ASSETS
Cash and investments 3,386,401$     
Due from other governments 168,212          
Prepaid expense 111,558          
Capital assets, depreciable/amortizable, net 3,106,825       


Total Assets 6,772,996       


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Related to OPEB 1,341,636       
Related to pensions 934,865          


2,276,501       


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 96,719            
Salaries and benefits payable 113,278          
Accrued interest 8,543              
Long-term liabilities:


Due within one year:
Loans 287,704          
Lease liabilities 37,226            
Accrued compensated absences 189,209          


Due in more than one year:
Loans 765,409          
Lease liabilities 283,929          
Net OPEB obligation 3,571,026       
Net pension liability 1,422,635       


Total Liabilities 6,775,678       


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to OPEB 41,220            
Related to pensions 1,826,002       


1,867,222       


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,732,557       
Unrestricted (1,325,960)     


Total Net Position 406,597$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities


June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
4







PROGRAM EXPENSES
Public safety - 911 communications


Salaries and employee benefits 4,511,559$     
Services and supplies 1,155,899       
Other 2,215              
Depreciation and amortization 660,983          


Interest on long-term debt 95,602            
Total Program Expenses 6,426,258       


PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services 126,713          
Operating grants and contributions 6,300,729       
Capital grants and contributions 514,732          


Total Program Revenues 6,942,174       


Net Program Revenue 515,916          


GENERAL REVENUES
Interest (82,336)          


Total General Revenues (82,336)          


Change in Net Position 433,580          


Net Position - beginning of year (26,983)          


Net Position - end of year 406,597$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
5







ASSETS
Cash and investments 3,386,401$     
Due from other governments 168,212          
Prepaid items 111,558          


Total Assets 3,666,171$     


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 96,719$          
Salary and benefits payable 113,278          


Total Liabilities 209,997          


Fund Balance:
Nonspendable - prepaid items 111,558          
Assigned:


Encumbrances 57,847            
Equipment Failures 50,000            
Capital/special projects 787,666          
Subsequent year's budget 350,000          
Reserves 1,324,000       


Unassigned 775,103          
Total Fund Balance 3,456,174       


Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3,666,171$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
6







Fund balance - General Fund 3,456,174$     


Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
 and, therefore, are not reported in the General Fund. 2,797,029       


Right-to-use leased assets used in governmental activities are not
 financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the General Fund. 309,796          


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are not
 reported in the General Fund. 2,276,501       


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are not
 reported in the General Fund. (1,867,222)     


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
 therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.


Net OPEB obligation (3,571,026)     
Net pension liability (1,422,635)     
Accrued interest (8,543)            
Loans payable (1,053,113)     
Lease liabilities (321,155)        
Compensated absences (189,209)        


Net position - Governmental Activities 406,597$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position


June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
7







REVENUES
Intergovernmental:


Federal 138,609$        
State 64,333            
Other governmental agencies 8,400              


Member contributions 6,566,842       
Interest (82,336)          
Charges for services 126,713          
Other 37,277            


Total Revenues 6,859,838       


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 4,697,511       
Services and supplies 1,155,899       
Other Charges 2,215              


Debt service:
Principal 311,921          
Interest 97,855            


Capital outlay 184,012          
Total Expenditures 6,449,413       


Change in Fund Balance 410,425          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 3,045,749       


Fund Balance - end of year 3,456,174$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
8







Change in fund balance - General Fund 410,425$        


Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:


The General Fund reports capital outlay as expenditures.  However,
 in the statement of activities, the cost of those items is allocated
 over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 184,012$    
Depreciation and amortization expense (660,983)     (476,971)        


Repayment of long-term liabilities are expenditures in the General
 Fund, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 311,921          


Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current
 financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the General
 Fund.


Change in compensated absences (8,654)         
Change in net OPEB liability and related amounts (244,904)     
Change in net pension liability and related amounts 439,510      
Change in accrued interest 2,253          188,205          


Change in net position - Governmental Activities 433,580$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
9







 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 


 


10 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), was established June 21, 1988 by Agreement 
No. 88-133, which is a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to Government Code 
6500 et seq. 
 
YECA includes all operating activities considered to be a part of YECA.  YECA reviewed the criteria 
developed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its issuance of Statement No. 
14, which was amended by Statement No. 61, relating to the financial reporting entity to determine 
whether YECA is financially accountable for other entities.  YECA has determined that no other outside 
entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no other agency has been included as a component unit in 
YECA’s financial statements. 
 
The parties making up the Joint Powers Agency (JPA) are the County of Yolo and the cities of Woodland, 
West Sacramento, Winters and the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation.  The parties each appoint members to the 
governing board of YECA. 
 
YECA was created to provide mutual benefits, such as cost savings and greater operational efficiency, to 
the county and the cities through the sharing of communication facilities, emergency services, and 
increased management control. 
 
Each party retains ownership of their radio frequencies, but allows the use of those frequencies by YECA. 
 
Under the Agreement, each party in YECA contributes to the budget of YECA.  These contributions are 
based on various formulas outlined in Section 9.2 of the JPA Agreement. 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 
Government-Wide Statements 
 
The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary 
government (YECA).  These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
YECA's governmental activity.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment.  Program revenues include charges for services, grants and contributions, as well as 
contributions received from JPA members that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of YECA.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment 
income, are presented instead as general revenues. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Revenues from grants, 
entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. 







 


11 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting (continued) 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund. YECA’s General Fund accounts for all 
of its financial resources and activities. The fund financial statements are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.  
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collected 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  
YECA uses an availability period of 365 days for revenue recognition for its General Fund revenues. 
Those revenues susceptible to accrual include charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, 
contributions, and investment income.  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. 
 
Nonexchange transactions, in which YECA gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations.  On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from nonexchange transactions are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied and have met the 365-day availability criteria.  
 
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
YECA maintains cash and investments with the Yolo County Treasurer (Treasurer) in a cash and 
investment pool.  On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer allocates interest to participants based upon their 
average daily balances.  Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of investments and 
other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the County of Yolo's (County) 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The County’s financial statements may be obtained by 
contacting the County’s Department of Financial Services (DFS) at 625 Court Street, Room 103, 
Woodland, California 95776 or from the County’s website at www.yolocounty.org.  The Yolo County 
Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and policies. 
 
YECA has no deposit or investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, or custodial credit risk.  
Investments held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.   
 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets have been acquired for general operational purposes.  Assets purchased are recorded as 
expenditures in the General Fund and capitalized at cost or estimated cost where no historical records are 
available in the government-wide financial statements. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated 
fair market value on the date contributed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets, including 
intangible assets, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 15 
years in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred.  Costs of assets sold or retired, and the 
related amounts of accumulated depreciation, are eliminated in the year of sale or retirement, and the 
resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.  In governmental funds, the sale of capital assets is 
included in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance as proceeds from sale. 







 


12 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Right-to-use Lease Assets 
 
Right-to-use lease assets are recorded at the amount of the initial measurement of theses liabilities and 
modified by any lease payment made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term, less 
any lease incentives received from the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term along with 
any initial direct costs that are ancillary charges necessary to place the lease assets into service. 
 
Right-to-use lease assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or 
the useful life of the underlying asset, unless the lease contains a purchase option that YECA has 
determined is reasonably certain of being exercised. 
 
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and 
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 


Valuation Date:  June 30, 2020 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2021 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 


 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
YECA Retiree Benefits Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan.  For this purpose, the Plan 
recognizes benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) when currently due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.   
 
GASB Statement No. 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 


Valuation Date:  June 30, 2021 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2021 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 


 
 







 


13 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Unused vacation leave, compensatory time off, floating holidays and additional time off, may be 
accumulated up to a specified maximum and is paid at the time employment with YECA is terminated.  
YECA is not obligated to pay for unused sick leave if employment is terminated prior to retirement. 
 
The accumulated benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them.  In the normal 
course of business, compensated absences do not require the use of current financial resources as all 
payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded from appropriations of the year in which they are 
to be paid; therefore, the total liability is recorded in the government-wide financial statements only.  A 
liability for compensated absences is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, because of employee resignations and retirements and is currently payable.  In accordance with 
the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for 
nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits. 
 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
 
Fund Balance 
 
The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, established the following classification of fund balance: 
 


 Nonspendable Fund Balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  YECA has 
nonspendable fund balance for the prepaid items (not in spendable form). 


 Restricted Fund Balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
YECA has no restricted fund balance. 


 Committed Fund Balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making authority,” 
which YECA considers to be resolutions adopted by YECA’s Board of Directors.  YECA has no 
committed fund balance.  


 Assigned Fund Balance – includes amounts of fund balance that reflect YECA's intended use of 
resources for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.  YECA has assigned 
fund balance for encumbrances, the portion used to balance the subsequent year’s budget, and 
reserves.  


 Unassigned Fund Balance – includes resources in fund balance that cannot be classified into any 
of the other categories. 


 
YECA's spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


14 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position (continued) 
 
Reserves 
YECA has established a policy to set aside funds into three designated reserves to address unforeseen 
emergencies or disasters, significant changes in the economic environment, and key infrastructure and 
capital projects.  These three reserves are the Equipment Failure, General Reserve and the Capital/Special 
Projects Reserve.  The balance of these reserves as of June 30, 2022, are $50,000, $1,324,000 and 
$787,666 respectively. 
 
Reserve Levels – YECA commits to maintaining the General Reserve at a minimum of 20% of General 
Fund annual operating expenditures (minus one-time expenditures).  The General Fund Reserve policy is 
reviewed by the Board as part of the annual operating budget review and adoption process.  
Appropriations of any reserve require formal Board authorization. 
 
General Reserve – Funds reserved under this category shall be used to mitigate costs associated with 
unforeseen emergencies, including natural disasters or catastrophic events that impair the operating 
infrastructure of YECA’s communications.  Should unforeseen and unavoidable events occur that require 
the expenditure of YECA’s resources beyond those provided for in the annual budget, the Executive 
Director or designee shall have authority to approve appropriations with the knowledge of the Chair or 
Co-chair of the Board.  The Executive Director or designee shall then present to the Board a budget 
amendment confirming the nature of the emergency and authorizing the appropriation of reserve funds.  
Other funds reserved under this category shall be used to mitigate budgetary issues and/or one-time 
expenditures that will result in future efficiencies and/or budget savings or as deemed by the Board for 
authorization. 
 
In keeping with the principles discussed in this policy, the Board will develop a 1 to 7 year reserve 
replenishment plan to meet the minimum threshold of 20% of General Fund ongoing expenditures, 
excluding one-time expenditures.   
 
At the end of each fiscal year, YECA reports on the audited year-end budgetary fiscal results.  Should 
actual General Fund revenues exceed expenditures, a year-end operating surplus shall be reported.  Any 
year-end surplus that results in the General Fund balance exceeding the level required by the reserve 
policy shall be available for allocation for the following, subject to Board approval: 
 


 Capital/Special Projects Reserve 
 One-time funding, non-recurring needs 
 Member share reductions 


 
Capital/Special Projects Reserve – Funds reserved under this category are designated for key 
infrastructure and capital/special projects as identified in YECA’s 10-year Capital Improvement Plan, as 
there is no ongoing funding source to support YECA’s capital needs.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


15 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position (continued) 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from YECA’s revenues, expenses, and contributions of 
capital.  Net position is classified in the following three components: 
 


 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and any related outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of 
those assets. 
 


 Restricted Net Position – Restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
related to those assets. 
 


 Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net investment in capital assets."  


 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YECA's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
 
Members' Contributions 
 
Each member of YECA contributes annually based on YECA's budget.  Members' contributions are 
determined by various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement.  Contributions are payable in 
quarterly installments before the first day of each quarter. 
 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
 
Implementation of New GASB Statements 


In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a 
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.  A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control 
of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, 
and equipment. Any contract that meets this definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, 
unless specifically excluded in this Statement.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  The implementation of this statement required YECA to 
report lease liabilities and right-to-use lease assets of $355,373 as of July 1, 2021.  Amounts reported in 
Notes 3 and 5 have been restated. 







 


16 
 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS  
 
Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.  As of 
June 30, 2022, YECA's total cash in the County of Yolo Treasury was $3,386,101. 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020, are classified in the accompanying statement of net position as 
follows: 
 


Cash in County Treasury 3,386,101$     
Imprest cash 300                 


Total Cash and Investments 3,386,401$     
 


 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code  
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for YECA by the California 
Government Code.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that 
address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  
 


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage of 


Portfolio


Maximum 
Investment in 


One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% No limit
Repurchase Agreements 1 year No limit No limit
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value No limit
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% No limit
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% No limit
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A No limit No limit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No limit No limit
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A No limit No limit  


 
 
Investments in the County of Yolo Investment Pool 
 
YECA’s cash is held in the County of Yolo Treasury.  The County maintains an investment pool and 
allocates interest quarterly to the various funds based upon quarterly average daily cash balances.  
Investments held in the County’s investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.  
The fair value of the County’s investment pool is determined by the fair value of the underlying 
investments, which represent level 2 inputs under the fair value hierarchy.  Information regarding fair 
value measurements of the County pool may be found in the notes to the County of Yolo financial 
statements at http://countyofyolo.org/general-government/general-government-departments/financial-
services/publications. 
 







 


17 
 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is 
to changes in market interest rates.  The weighted average maturity of the County’s external investment 
pool as of June 30, 2022 was 513 days. 


  
Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization (Standard and Poor’s).  The County’s external investment pool is not rated. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial risk is the risk that the government will not be able to recover its deposits or the value of its 
investments that are in the possession of an outside party.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local 
government’s indirect deposits or investments in securities with governmental investment pools (such as 
the County of Yolo investment pool).  







18 


NOTE 3:  CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE LEASE ASSETS 


Capital and right-to-use leased asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 includes the following 
adjusted amounts: 


Balance
as restated Balance


July 1, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022


Capital assets, depreciable:
 Improvements other than buildings 387,744$        -$  -$  387,744$   
 Equipment 7,138,054  184,012  (41,213)  7,280,853  
 Furniture and fixtures 129,033  -  -  129,033  
 Vehicles 17,042  -  -  17,042  


 Total capital assets, being depreciated 7,671,873  184,012  (41,213)  7,814,672  


Less accumulated depreciation for:
 Improvements other than buildings (106,866)  (18,864)  - (125,730) 
 Equipment (4,195,071)  (595,402)  41,213  (4,749,260) 
 Furniture and fixtures (124,471)  (1,140)  - (125,611) 
 Vehicles (17,042)  -  -  (17,042) 


 Total accumulated depreciation (4,443,450)  (615,406)  41,213  (5,017,643)  


 Total capital assets, depreciable, net 3,228,423  (431,394)  - 2,797,029 


Right-to-use leased assets, amortizable:
 Land   339,966 -  -    339,966
 Equipment 15,407  -  -  15,407  


 Total right-to-use leased assets, amortizable:   355,373 -  -    355,373


Less accumulated amortization for:
 Land - (42,496) - (42,496) 
 Equipment - (3,081) - (3,081) 


 Total accumulated amortization - (45,577) - (45,577) 


Total right-to-use leased assets, amortizable, net   355,373 (45,577)   - 309,796


 Total governmental activities, net  - $      3,106,825


Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to the public safety - 911 communications function in 
the amount of $615,406 and $45,577 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, respectively. 


$     3,583,796 $     (476,971) $ 







 


19 
 


NOTE 4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022: 
 


Balance Amounts
as restated Balance Due Within


July 1, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022 One Year


Loan 1,330,816$     -$                 (277,703)$      1,053,113$     287,704$     
Leases 355,373          -                   (34,218)          321,155          37,226         
Compensated absences 180,555          103,022       (94,368)          189,209          189,209       
Net OPEB liability 3,251,316       319,710       -                     3,571,026       -                   
Net pension liability 3,715,790       -                   (2,293,155)     1,422,635       -                   


Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,833,850$     422,732$     (2,699,444)$   6,557,138$     514,139$     


 
Loan 
On November 18, 2010, YECA and the County of Yolo as co-issuer, issued $3,724,000 in ARRA-
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (the Bonds) to finance (and reimburse for prior 
expenditures related to) the expansion, refurbishment, improvement, and equipping of its regional 
emergency communications system.  Net proceeds, after the payment of issuance costs, were deposited 
with Deutsch Bank, acting as trustee.  Concurrently, YECA along with the County of Yolo as co-issuer, 
entered into a Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of America to finance the lease 
purchase of emergency communications equipment, which is considered a direct borrowing.  The 
agreement is collateralized by the equipment.  Lease payments will be used to finance the repayment of 
the Bonds.  The Bonds provide for a Federal subsidy of 45% of the interest paid on the Bonds to the 
issuer. The interest rate on the lease is 6.49%, with a maturity date of November 18, 2025. To obtain the 
subsidy, YECA must file a claim with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) when an interest payment on 
the Bonds is made.  The agreement contains default provisions whereby Bank of America may take 
possession of the equipment but cannot accelerate rental payments. 
 
The following is a schedule of total debt service requirements on long-term debt as of June 30, 2022: 
 


Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total


2023 287,704$     63,720$       351,424$     
2024 298,065       44,882         342,947       
2025 308,799       25,365         334,164       
2026 158,545       5,145           163,690       


1,053,113$  139,112$     1,192,225$  


Governmental Activities


Loan


 
 
 
 
 
 







 


20 
 


NOTE 5:  LEASES 
 
Leases as Lessee 
 
All leases are recognized as having an inception date as of July 1, 2021.  YECA has entered into (2) lease 
agreements as a lessee for right-to-use land and equipment. 
 
The equipment (copiers) lease terminates in July 2027 at which time YECA has the option to continue 
month-to-month or return the equipment to the lessor.  The required monthly principal and interest 
payment is $331 utilizing the implied agreement rate of 10.51%.  The right-to-use assets are being 
amortized over 5 years, the remaining term of the lease. 
 
YECA has entered into an agreement to lease a portion of property located a top Bald Mountain, the 
location of a communications tower. The agreement has an option whereby YECA may exercise to extend 
the term of the lease for 4 additional terms of ten years each.  The required monthly principal and interest 
payments range from $3,850 in FY 2022 to $4,734 in FY 2029.  The payments are subject to a 3% annual 
increase. An incremental borrowing rate of 4.25% was utilized.  The right-to-use asset is being amortized 
over 5 years, the remaining term of the lease. 
  
 
Principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows: 
 


FYE


June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total


2023 34,481$     13,099$  47,580$     2,745$     1,230$   3,975$     37,226$      14,329$   51,555$       
2024 37,374       11,634    49,008       3,048       927        3,975       40,422        12,561     52,983         
2025 40,433       10,046    50,479       3,384       591        3,975       43,817        10,637     54,454         
2026 43,665       8,327      51,992       3,758       217        3,975       47,423        8,544       55,967         
2027 47,081       6,471      53,552       -              47,081        6,471       53,552         


2028-2029 105,186     6,787      111,973     -              105,186      6,787       111,973       


308,220$   56,364$  364,584$   12,935$   2,965$   15,900$   321,155$    59,329$   380,484$     


Land Lease Equipment Lease Total


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


21 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS 
 
General Information about the Pension Plans 
 
Plans Description 
All of YECA’s qualified employees are eligible to participate in the YECA’s Miscellaneous Plan or 
PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan (Plans), cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plans 
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  A full description of 
the Plans regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not 
accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the June 30, 2020 Annual Actuarial 
Valuation Report.  Details of the benefits provided can be obtained in Appendix B of the actuarial 
valuation reports.  These reports and CalPERS’ audited financial statements are publicly available reports 
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications. 
 
The California Legislature passed, and the Governor signed the “Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013” (PEPRA) on September 12, 2012.  PEPRA contained a number of provisions intended to reduce 
future pension obligations.  PEPRA primarily affects new pension plan members who are enrolled for the 
first time after December 2012.  Benefit provisions under the Plans and other requirements are established 
by State statute and YECA resolution. 
 
Benefits Provided 
The benefits for the Plans are based on members’ years of services, age, final compensation, and benefit 
formula.  Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries.  
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited 
service. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect as of June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows: 
 


Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013


Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 to 67 52 to 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of
 eligible compensation 1.426 to 2.418% 1.000 to 2.500%  


 
 
Contributions 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are 
determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is 
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  YECA is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.  YECA’s 
contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.  Payments made by YECA to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution 
requirements are classified as plan member contributions. 







 


22 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
General Information about the Pension Plans (continued) 
 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2021 (the measurement date), the active employee 
contribution rate was 7.000% and 6.750% of member earnings and the employer contribution rate was 
25.73% and 8.04% of member earnings for the Miscellaneous Plan and PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan, 
respectively.  Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.  It is the 
responsibility of YECA to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any 
employer-paid member contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of the employer 
contribution. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the actual contributions totaled $560,022. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2022, YECA reported a liability of $1,422,635 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, using an annual actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2020, rolled forward to June 30, 2021 using standard update procedures.  
YECA’s net pension liability is the difference between its proportion of the total pension liability based 
on its share of the actuarial accrued liability and its proportion of the fiduciary net position based on its 
share of the market value of assets.  YECA’s proportion of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2022 
and 2021 was 0.026305% and 0.034151%, respectively, for an decrease of 0.007846%. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, YECA recognized pension expense of $120,512.  At June 30, 
2022, YECA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 560,022$              -$                     
Differences between expected and actual experience 159,533                -                       
Changes in assumptions -                       -                       
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
 on pension plan investments -                       (1,241,883)           
Change in employer's proportion 150,682                (327,492)              
Differences between the employer's contributions and
 the employer's proportionate share of contributions 64,628                  (256,627)              


Totals 934,865$              (1,826,002)$         


 







 


23 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 
The $560,022 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension contributions subsequent to 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 
2022.  The remainder reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be recognized as 
pension expense as follows: 
 


Year Ending Deferred Inflows
June 30 (Outflows) of Resources


2023 (332,158)$                          
2024 (384,439)                            
2025 (391,368)                            
2026 (343,194)                            
2027 -                                     


Thereafter -                                     


Total (1,451,159)$                       


 
 
Actuarial Assumptions and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
 
The June 30, 2020 valuation was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2021 total pension liability, 
based on the following actuarial method and assumptions: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Actuarial Assumptions:


Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Payroll growth 2.75%
Mortality Rate Table (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.5% until Purchasing Power 


Protection Allowance floor on purchasing power applies, 
2.50% thereafter.


(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data.  The probabilities of 
mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997-2015.  Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement 
using 90% of scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries.  For more details on this table, 
please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from 
December 2017  that can be found on the CalPERS website.


 
Change of Assumptions  
 
None. 
 
 
 







 


24 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Discount Rate  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%.  The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes, (which includes the agent plan and 
two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 
expenses.  The expected real rates of return by asset classes can be found in CalPERS’s Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
  
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 


Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return


Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (1) Years 11+ (2)


Public Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%


(1) In the System's CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities;
      Liquidity is included in Short-term Investments;  Inflation Assets are 
       included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.
(2) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.  


 
 
 
 







 


25 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Sensitivity of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
 
The following presents the net pension liability as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.15%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15%) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current rate: 
 


Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
- 1% (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) + 1% (8.15%)


YECA's Proportionate Share
 of Plans' Net Pension Liability 4,137,394$         1,422,635$         (821,616)$           


 
 
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position 
are recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 
 
The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss occurs.  The 
remaining amounts are categorized are deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions and are the be recognized in future pension expense. 
 
The amortization period differs depending on the source of gain or loss: 
 


 Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments is amortized 
over a five-year period on a straight-line basis. 


 All other amounts are amortized using straight-line amortization over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that are provided with benefits (active, 
inactive, and retired) as of the beginning of the measurement period.   


 
The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 is 3.7 years, which was 
obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of all 
active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired) in PERF C. 
Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Total future service is based 
on the members’ probability of decrementing due an event other than receiving a cash refund.  
 
 
Pension Plans Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the Plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS 
financial report. 
 







 


26 
 


NOTE 7:  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
YECA offers to each non-safety employee a 401(a) Money Purchase Plan (MPP) administered by the 
VALIC Retirement Services Company.  Each participant has an individual account with VALIC into 
which all contributions are recorded.  The participants are offered various investment options through the 
MPP and are allowed to invest moneys in their account, at their own discretion, among the options.  
YECA may amend, modify, or terminate the MPP, upon approval of such amendment, modification, or 
termination by YECA’s Board of Director’s approval.  Employees covered by the MPP are eligible to 
participate from the date of employment.  The MPP defines YECA contributions which range from 3-6 
percent of an employee’s base salary based on the employee’s designated employee group.  Employee 
contributions to the MPP are not permitted.  Under the MPP each participant is 100 percent vested in the 
amounts credited to the participants account at all times.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, 
contributions paid to the MPP were $10,093.  
 
 
NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  
 
Plan Description 
 
YECA sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide postemployment health benefits to 
eligible retirees and their spouses through CalPERS (the Plan).  Benefit allowance provisions are 
established through resolution between YECA and three employee groups:  general, supervisor, and 
management.  The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 
 
Plan members include current retirees and active employees of YECA.  Eligible plan members are YECA 
employees who have retired from active employment with YECA and have five years of service credit 
with CalPERS.  There is not a minimum service period with YECA to be eligible for the retiree 
health/medical benefit.   
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The benefit allowance provides a lifetime allowance to eligible plan members and their surviving spouses, 
if applicable.  The benefit allowance is provided in conjunction with the MOU terms allowing retirees to 
continue their current health insurance which also covers active members. For eligible plan members, 
YECA provides a maximum monthly benefit allowance of $253 for general and supervisor members and 
$700 per month for management.  Any, and all insurance premium costs incurred by retirees above the 
monthly benefit allowance are borne by the retiree. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At the OPEB liability measurement date of June 30, 2021, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 


 


Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefit payments 20
Inactive employees entitled but not receiving benefit payments 2
Active employees 41


63


 
Contributions 


  
YECA does not currently have a pre-funding plan and is on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 







 


27 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
At June 30, 2022, YECA reported a net OPEB liability of $3,571,026.  The total OPEB liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2021.  Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from 
valuation to measurement dates. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 
 
 Discount rate    2.18% 


Salary increases    3.00% 
 General inflation rate   2.50% 


Healthcare cost trend rate  Actual for 2022, 5.8% in 2023; fluctuates until 
      ultimate rate of 3.9% in 2076 and thereafter. 
       
 
Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates were based on the CalPERS 2017 Experience Study, 
using data from 1997 to 2015. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on a review of plan experience 
during the period June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021. 
 
The following changes in assumptions were made in the June 30, 2021 valuation: 


 Discount rate.  The discount rate was changed from 2.66% as of June 30, 2020 to 2.18% as of 
June 30, 2021, based on the published change in return for the applicable municipal bond index. 


 Demographic.  Assumed rates of retirement, termination and mortality were updated to be based 
on the 2017 experience study of the California Public Employees Retirement System using data 
from 1997 to 2015. 


 Mortality.  Projection of future improvement in mortality rates was updated, applying MacLeod 
Watts Scale 2022 applied generationally from 2015. 


 Spouse coverage.  The percentage of non-management employees assumed to be married and 
elect coverage for their spouses in retirement was decreased from 50% to 40%. 


 Trend on PEMHCA MEC Benefit.  We assumed the PEMHCA Minimum Employer Contribution 
(MEC) will increase by 4.0% per year. 


 
Discount Rate 
 
GASB 75 requires a discount rate the reflects the following: 
 a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments – to the extent that the  
   OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position, if any, is projected to be sufficient to make projected 
  benefit payments and assets are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that  
  return.  
 b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an  
  average rating of AA/Aa or higher – to the extent that the conditions in (a) or not met. 
 
The discount rate used to measure YECA’s total OPEB liability is based on the S&P general obligation 
bond 20-year high grade. 
 
 







 


28 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 
The table below shows the changes in the total OPEB liability, the Plan Fiduciary Net Position (i.e. Fair 
value of Plan assets), and the net OPEB liability during the measurement period ending on June 30, 2021. 
 


Total OPEB 
Liability     


(a)


Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position     


(b)


Net OPEB 
Liability       
(a) - (b)


Balances at 6/30/2021 3,251,316$   -$                   3,251,316$   


Changes for the year:
Service cost 127,204        -                     127,204        
Interest 88,120          -                     88,120          
Changes of benefit terms -                   -                     -                   


Difference between expected and 
actual experience (46,405)        -                     (46,405)        
Changes of assumptions 282,291        -                     282,291        
Contributions - employer * -                   (131,500)        (131,500)      
Net investment income -                   -                     -                   
Benefit payments * (131,500)      131,500         -                   
Administrative expense -                   -                     -                   
    Net changes 319,710        -                     319,710        


Balances at 6/30/2022 3,571,026$   -$                   3,571,026$   


*  $87,898 of benefits paid to retirees, plus an implicit subsidy amount of $43,602.


Increase (Decrease)


 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (1.18%) or 1-percentage point higher 
(3.18%) than the current discount rate: 
 


 


1.18% 2.18% 3.18%


Net OPEB liability 4,177,069$     3,571,026$  3,094,000$    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


29 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are1-percentage point lower (4.40% decreasing to 3%) or 
1-percentage point higher (6.40% decreasing to 5.00%) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 
 
 


1% Decrease (4.8% Trend rate (5.8% 1% Increase (6.80%
decreasing to 2.9%) decreasing to 3.9%) decreasing to 4.9%)


Net OPEB liability 3,163,374$                   3,571,026$                   4,132,963$                   
 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferral of Outflow of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2022 YECA recognized OPEB expense of $391,940.  OPEB expense 
represents the change in net OPEB liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, and actuarial assumptions 
or method.   
 
At June 30, 2022 YECA reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 


Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources


Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 147,036$            -$                        
Differences between actual and expected experience 266,911              (41,220)               
Changes in assumptions 927,689              -                          


Total 1,341,636$         (41,220)$             


 
The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions after the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the following fiscal year.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 
 


Year Ended
June 30


2023 176,616$      
2024 176,616
2025 176,616
2026 176,616
2017 176,616


Thereafter 270,300


1,153,380$   


 
 
 







 


30 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows of and Deferred Inflows of Resources:  Gains and losses related to 
changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense systematically 
over time.  Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs.  The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 
 
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain lor loss.  The net difference between 
expected and actual experience and changes of assumptions are recognized over the expected average 
remaining service lifetime (EARSL), which was 8.95 years at the June 30, 2021 valuation date. 
 
 
NOTE 9:  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
YECA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
YECA participates in the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Agency 
(YCPARMIA), a joint power agency (risk-sharing pool) made up of other governmental entities within 
the County.  YECA is covered for general and automobile, workers' compensation, property, pollution, 
fidelity, and cyber through YCPARMIA.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the California Joint 
Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for 
catastrophic general and automobile losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the Public Risk 
Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM) insurance risk sharing pool, YECA is provided with an 
excess coverage fund for catastrophic workers’ compensation, property, and pollution losses.  Through 
YCPARMIA membership in the Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland (FDCM), YECA is provided 
with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic fidelity losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in 
Lloyd’s of London, YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic cyber losses.  Loss 
contingency reserves established by YCPARMIA are funded by contributions from member agencies.  
 
The annual contribution YCPARMIA charges to each agency is based upon its pro-rata share of excess 
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk (losses) recognizing the deductible selected, claims 
adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the YCPARMIA.  Settled claims 
from these risks did not exceed coverage for the past three years.  YECA's deductible and maximum 
coverage are as follows: 
  


Coverage Deductible YCPARMIA CJPRMA PRISM FDMD
Lloyd's of 
London


General and automobile 1,000$      1,000,000$  40,000,000$   -$                    -$                -$              
Workers' compensation 1,000        1,000,000    -                      5,000,000       -                  -                
Property 1,000        25,000         -                      25,000,000     -                  -                
Pollution -                75,000         -                      10,000,000     -                  -                
Fidelity 1,000        25,000         -                      -                      2,000,000   -                
Cyber Liability 100,000       2,000,000 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


31 
 


NOTE 10:  COMMITMENTS 
 
On February 11, 2020, the Yolo County Board of Supervisors approved an Energy Services Agreement 
with Trane U.S., for energy-related improvements in County-owned buildings.  The total cost of the 
improvements is $10,065,791 which the County is financing over 15 years through a lease purchase 
agreement.  YECA is located in a County-owned building known as the Communications Center.  This 
building’s planned improvements include replacement of one HVAC system and 128 units of lighting at a 
cost of $72,496.  YECA will reimburse the County $151,977 over 15 years beginning with a $2,793 
payment in fiscal year 2020-21 continuing with payments of $10,656 beginning in fiscal year 2021-22 
through fiscal year 2034-2035. 
 
 
NOTE 11:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 
 
In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements.  This Statement addresses issues related to public-private and public-
public partnership arrangements (PPPs).  PPPs are arrangements in which a government (the transferor) 
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by 
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital 
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.  This 
statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply guidance in Statement No. 87, 
Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that are not required to be improved by the 
operator as part of the PPP arrangement are the only underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the 
definition of a service concession arrangement. This Statement provides accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for all other PPPs:  those that either (1) meet the definition of an SCA or (2) are 
not within the scope of Statement No. 87, as amended.  This Statement also provides guidance for 
accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements that include an arrangement in 
which a government compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, 
financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange 
or exchange-like transaction.  This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 
2022. 
 
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements (SBITA).  This Statement 1) defines the term SBITA; 2) establishes that a SBITA results 
in a right-to-use subscription asset – an intangible asset – and a corresponding subscription liability; 3) 
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation 
costs to a SBITA; and 4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  To the extent relevant, the 
standards for SBITA are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  
This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


32 
 


NOTE 11:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS (continued) 
 
In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.  This Statement enhances 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and consistency in authoritative literature, including 
the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, that do not meet the definition of either 
an investment derivative instrument or a hedging derivative instrument; clarification of provisions of 
Statement 87, Leases, related to the determination of the lease term, classification of a lease as a short-
term lease, recognition and measurement of a lease liability and a lease asset and identification of lease 
incentives; clarification of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements, related to the subscription-based information technology arrangement term, classification 
as short-term and recognition of a subscription liability; extension of the period during which the London 
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative 
evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap that hedges the interest rate risk of taxable debt; 
accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
(SNAP); disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions; pledges of future revenues when resources are 
not received by the pledging government; clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, related to the 
focus of the government-wide financial statements; terminology updates related to provisions of 
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position; and terminology used in Statement No. 53 to refer to resource flows 
statements.   The provisions of this Statement are effective immediately through periods beginning after 
June 15, 2023. 
 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentional Left Blank 







 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


(Unaudited) 


 


 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 







 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
This page intentionally left blank 







Last 10 Fiscal Years *


2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability


Service cost 127,204$     119,741$     60,873$       59,699$       57,960$       
Interest 88,120         88,458         52,769         53,426         50,842         
Changes of benefit terms -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Difference between expected and actual experience (46,405)       -                  395,233       -                  -                  
Changes of assumptions 282,291       57,512         935,661       32,927         -                  
Benefit payments (131,500)     (130,374)     (76,939)       (89,719)       (81,581)       
Net change in total OPEB Liability 319,710       135,337       1,367,597    56,333         27,221         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 3,251,316    3,115,979    1,748,382    1,692,049    1,664,828    
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 3,571,026$  3,251,316$  3,115,979$  1,748,382$  1,692,049$  


Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 131,500$     130,374$     76,939$       89,719$       81,581$       
Net investment income -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Benefit payments (131,500)     (130,374)     (76,939)       (89,719)       (81,581)       
Administrative expense -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                


Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 3,571,026$  3,251,316$  3,115,979$  1,748,382$  1,692,049$  


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the toal 
OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


Covered employee payroll 3,950,509$  3,910,169$  2,973,096$  2,827,312$  2,709,609$  


Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee 
payroll 90.39% 83.15% 104.81% 61.84% 62.45%


Measurement date 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2017 6/30/2017


*  FY 2018 is the first year of GASB 75.  Additional years will be presented as they become available.


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios


33







YECA's
Proportionate
Share of the Plan's
Net Pension Fiduciary


YECA's YECA's Liability as a Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate YECA's Percentage of a Percentage
of the Net Share of the Covered- its Covered- of the Plan's


Fiscal Measurement Pension Net Pension Employee Employee Total Pension
Year Period Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability


2022 2021 0.026305% 1,422,635$    3,051,195$  46.63% 93.08%


2021 2020 0.034151% 3,715,790$    3,111,965$  119.40% 80.72%


2020 2019 0.032084% 3,287,611      2,973,096    110.58% 81.84%


2019 2018 0.035360% 3,407,342      2,848,657    119.61% 79.90%


2018 2017 0.035150% 3,485,446      2,968,839    117.40% 77.86%


2017 2016 0.034104% 2,951,088      2,787,717    105.86% 74.06%


2016 2015 0.035719% 2,451,730      2,661,283    92.13% 78.40%


2015 2014 0.038235% 2,379,173      2,587,390    91.95% 80.43%


* This is the ninth year of implementation, therefore only eight years are presented.  Additional
   years will be presented as they become available.  Amounts presented above were determined
   as of June 30.


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of YECA's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability


Last 10 Years*


34







Contributions Contributions as
in Relation to YECA's a Percentage


Contractually the Contractually Covered- of Covered-
Measurement Required Required Contribution Employee Employee


Year Contribution Contribution Excess Payroll Payroll


2022 560,022$      560,022$             -$            3,038,759$  18.43%


2021 533,360$      533,360$             -              3,051,195$  17.48%


2020 491,292        491,292               -              3,111,965    15.79%


2019 420,943        920,943               500,000      2,973,096    30.98%


2018 351,623        351,623               -              2,848,657    12.34%


2017 323,079        323,079               -              2,968,839    10.88%


2016 348,330        588,764               240,434      2,787,717    21.12%


2015 292,497        292,497               -              2,661,283    10.99%


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of YECA's Pension Contributions
Last 10 Years*


35







36 
 


NOTE 1:  SCHEDULE OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN – SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB 
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
 
 
YECA has not adopted a formal funding plan, and as such is on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 
The actuarial funding method and assumptions used to determine the net OPEB: 
Measurement date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018


Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost Entry-Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:


Discount rate 2.18% 2.66% 2.79% 2.98%
Salary increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
General inflation rate 2.50% 2.50% 2.75% 2.75%


  Healthcare trend ratesHealthcare trend rates                                                                                       


Actual for 2022;  5.80% for 
2023;  fluctuates until 


ultimate rate of 3.9% in 
2076 and thereafter.


Actual for 2020;  5.40% 
for 2021;  fluctuates until 
ultimate rate of 4.00% in 


2076 and thereafter.


Actual for 2020;  5.40% 
for 2021;  decreasing to 


4.00% to 2076 and 
thereafter.


6% in 2017 and trend 
downward to 5.00% in 


2018 and thereafter.


 
 
 
NOTE 2:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 
LIABILITY 
 
 
In 2022 there were no changes to the benefit terms nor to financial reporting.  The June 30, 2020 valuation was based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study from 1997 to 2015 (December 2017 study), including updates to salary increases, mortality and retirement rates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







37 
 


NOTE 3:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 were from the actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2018. 
 
Measurement date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Valuation date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:
  Inflation 2.500% 2.500% 2.625% 2.750%


  Salary increase Varies (1) Varies (1) Varies Varies


  Payroll growth 2.75% (2) 2.75% (2) 2.88% 3.00%
  Investment rate of return 7.000% 7.000% 7.250% 7.375%


  Retirement age 2017 Experience Study (3) 2017 Experience Study (3) 2017 Experience Study (5) 2014 Experience Study (5)


  Mortality 2017 Experience Study (4) 2017 Experience Study (4) 2017 Experience Study (6) 2014 Experience Study (6)


(1) Depending on age, service, and type of employment.


(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation.


(3) The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015.


(4) The probabilites of mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period 1997-2015.  


 Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortaility rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvements using 90% of scale MP-2016 published by Societies of Actuaries.


(5) The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011.


(6) The probabilites of mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for the period 1997-2011.  Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortaility rates include 20 years of


 projected mortality improvements using Scale BB published by Societies of Actuaries.


 
 







TOTAL YECA


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 23,666$             23,666$       138,609$       114,943$        
State -                     -               64,333           64,333            
Other -                     -               8,400             8,400              


Contributions 6,566,842          6,566,842    6,566,842      -                  
Interest -                     -               (82,336)          (82,336)           
Other charges for services 148,564             148,564       126,713         (21,851)           
Other 34,528               34,528         37,277           2,749              


Total Revenues 6,773,600          6,773,600    6,859,838      86,238            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 5,286,855          5,113,589    4,697,511      416,078          
Services and supplies 732,130             1,256,425    1,180,387      76,038            
Other 2,500                 2,500           2,215             285                 


Debt service:
Principal 277,703             277,703       311,921         (34,218)           
Interest -                     81,904         97,855           (15,951)           


Capital outlay 568,400             217,371       217,371         -                  
Total Expenditures 6,867,588          6,949,492    6,507,260      442,232          


Changes in Fund Balance (93,988)              (175,892)      352,578         528,470          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 378,560             378,560       3,045,749      2,667,189       


Fund Balance - end of year 284,572$           202,668$     3,398,327$    3,195,659$     


Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Outflows and GAAP Expenditures:


Uses/outflows of resources
Total Expenditures from Budget and Actual schedule 6,507,260$     


Differences - budget to GAAP:


Encumbrances are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes but are
outflows of budgetary resources (57,847)           


Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance. 6,449,413$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


38







39 
 


NOTE 1:  BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
YECA prepares and legally adopts a final budget, on or before October 2 of each fiscal year.  YECA’s 
fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30.  In practice budgets are usually adopted before the new 
fiscal year begins on July 1.  However, if budgets are adopted after July 1, operations commencing July 1 
is governed by the proposed budget presented to the JPA Board of Directors by March 1.  
 
After the budget is approved, the Executive Director is authorized to execute transfers within major 
budget units, as long as the total expenditures for each major budget unit remains unchanged.  The major 
budget units are: 
 


 10-30 – Administration 
 10-40 – Dispatch Operations 
 10-50 – Information Technology 
 10-60 – Grants 
 20-30 – YECA Reserves 


 
An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis.  Unexpended contract and 
purchase order amounts at year-end represent the estimated amount of expenditures ultimately to result if 
the unperformed contracts in process at year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied.  Such 
year-end unexpended contract and purchase order balances are reported as assigned fund balance and do 
not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments may be honored during the subsequent 
year and included in the subsequent year's budget.   
 
Excess Expenditures over Appropriations 
 


 10-30 – Debt Service, $50,169 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 







 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 


 
 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ADMINISTRATION (10-30)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 23,666$             23,666$       -$                   (23,666)$         
Contributions 6,566,842          6,566,842    6,566,842      -                  
Interest -                     -               (39,079)          (39,079)           
Charges for services 148,564             148,564       124,539         (24,025)           
Other 34,528               34,528         37,277           2,749              


Total Revenues 6,773,600          6,773,600    6,689,579      (84,021)           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 1,006,982          895,478       895,478         -                  
Services and supplies 379,990             365,863       315,694         50,169            
Other charges 2,500                 2,500           2,215             285                 


Debt service:
Principal 277,703             277,703       311,921         (34,218)           
Interest -                     81,904         97,855           (15,951)           


Capital outlay 189,000             105,546       105,546         -                  
Transfers out 5,205,519          5,205,519    4,874,708      330,811          


Total Expenditures 7,061,694          6,934,513    6,603,417      331,096          


Changes in Fund Balance (288,094)            (160,913)      86,162           247,075          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 370,000             370,000       1,178,189      808,189          


Fund Balance - end of year 81,906$             209,087$     1,264,351$    1,055,264$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


40







DISPATCH (10-40)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


State -$                       -$                 13,290$         13,290$          
Charges for services -                     -               2,174             2,174              
Transfers in 4,373,613          4,373,613    3,850,440      (523,173)$       


Total Revenues 4,373,613          4,373,613    3,865,904      (507,709)         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 4,279,873          4,218,111    3,802,033      416,078          
Services and supplies 93,740               84,740         63,872           20,868            


Total Expenditures 4,373,613          4,302,851    3,865,905      436,946          


Changes in Fund Balance -                     70,762         (1)                   (70,763)           


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   70,762$       (1)$                 (70,763)$         


INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (10-50)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Transfers in 629,240$           629,240$     670,798$       (41,558)$         


Total Revenues 629,240             629,240       670,798         (41,558)           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Services and supplies 258,400             675,800       670,799         5,001              


Capital outlay 379,400             -$                 -                 -                  
Total Expenditures 637,800             675,800       670,799         5,001              


Changes in Fund Balance (8,560)                (46,560)        (1)                   (36,557)           


Fund Balance - beginning of year 8,560                 8,560           8,560             -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   (38,000)$      8,559$           (36,557)$         


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Supplementary Information


Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


41







GRANTS (10-60)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal -$                       -$                 138,609$       138,609$        
State -                     -               51,043           51,043            
Other -                     -               8,400             8,400              


Transfers in -                     -               43,796           43,796            
Total Revenues -                     -               241,848         241,848          


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Services and supplies -                     130,022       130,022         -                  


Capital outlay -                     111,825       111,825         -                  
Total Expenditures -                     241,847       241,847         -                  


Changes in Fund Balance -                     (241,847)      1                    241,848          


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   (241,847)$    1$                  241,848$        


YECA RESERVES (20-30)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Interest -$                       -$                 (43,257)$        (43,257)$         
Transfers in 202,666             202,666       252,666         50,000            


Total Revenues 202,666             202,666       209,409         6,743              


EXPENDITURES
Provision for reserves 202,666             202,666       252,666         (50,000)           


Total Expenditures 202,666             202,666       252,666         (50,000)           


Changes in Fund Balance -                     -               (43,257)          (43,257)           


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               1,859,000      1,859,000       


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             1,815,743$    1,815,743$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022


42







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


OTHER REPORTS 
 
 
. 







 
 


550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 


Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 


43 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 


FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Yolo Emergency 
Communications Agency (YECA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise YECA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated March 23, 2023. 


Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YECA’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control.  


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of YECA’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.   


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 


Report on Compliance and Other Matters 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YECA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 







To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 


44 


no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  


Purpose of this Report 


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control 
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering YECA’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 


 
March 23, 2023 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 











